
 
 
 

March 18, 2024 COTW & Regular Board Meeting – 6:30 p.m. 
 
 

 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
The following order of business may be changed by majority vote of the Board at any meeting.     

 

 Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices        24076 F.V. Pankow Boulevard, Clinton Township, Michigan 48036 
 

 
   * Indicates Board Action Needed   ** Indicates Roll Call Vote Needed 

 

A. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance, Roll Call  

B. *Approval of Agenda for the March 18, 2024 Committee of the Whole & Regular Board Meeting 

C. Presentations (Strategic Plan #2) 
1. Student Recognitions 

a. L’Anse Creuse Middle School – Central Students 
b. L’Anse Creuse High School Cheer Team 
c. L’Anse Creuse High School – North Basketball Student  
d. L’Anse Creuse High School – Wrestling Student 

*****************************************BREAK******************************************* 
D. Hearing of School District Patrons 

Please note: The Board will provide 30 minutes for public comment and speakers will be asked to limit their comments to 5 minutes.  If you did 
not have a chance to speak, the Board will provide additional time at the end of the meeting for public comment. 
 

E. ** Consent Agenda  
Please note: Unless removed from the Consent Agenda, items identified within the Consent Agenda will be acted on at one time.  
 

1. Budget Report 
2. Quarterly Budget Update 
3. Payment Registers 
4. Bid Award Recommendations 
5. Purchases 
6. Overtime Report 
7. Summary of Investments 
8. Summary of Wire Transfers 
9. Accounts Payable Check Register Approval Reminder 
10. Employment Recommendations 
11. Student Travel Requests 
12. Board Meeting Minutes 

a. February 21, 2024 Committee of the Whole Minutes 
b. February 26, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes 

F. Superintendent’s Report (Strategic Plan #3) 
1. District Update 
2. *L’Anse Creuse High School Track Recommendation 

G. Curriculum and Instruction Office (Strategic Plan #1) 
1. LCPS Extended Learning Reconfirmation 

H. Human Resources Office (Strategic Plan #2) 
1. *Food and Nutrition Tentative Agreement  

I. Technology Department (Strategic Plan #6) 
1. *Technology Purchase Recommendation 

J. Other Matters  
1. *Second Reading of Policy Recommendations 
2. *First Reading of Policy Recommendations 
3. SACC Registration Discussion 

K. Hearing of School District Patrons Follow-up 

L. Board Member Comment 

M. *Adjournment  



Erik J. Edoff 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Rochelle M. O’Malley 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE  

 
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON TWP., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 
WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Hilary Dubay    Sharon Ross         Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 E.1. 

 
 
Initiator:  Rochelle M. O’Malley  
 
Board Meeting: March 18, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:  Budget Report 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
 
Background: 
This report provides the Board with a monthly expenditure report, by fund, for fiscal year 2023-
2024 displaying the original total budgeted expenditures, actual month-to- date expenditures, 
actual year-to-date encumbrances, and the remaining balance of unexpended expenditures in 
both dollar amounts and by percentage (%). 

 
 
 
Current Status: 
Attached is the Budget Report as of February 29, 2024. 

 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration recommends 
that the Board motion to approve the Budget Report as presented.  
 
 
RMO/jbh 
 

http://www.lc-ps.org/


 3/06/24   9.11.34                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  02/28   FISCAL PERIOD 08   YEAR 2024       WORKING                   PAGE         1

WORKING           ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  3/06/24      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

11 GENERAL FUND

 111 Elementary Instruction                  29,071,544.00    2,289,536.11   14,783,004.16   12,484,710.37    1,803,829.47    6.20 %
 112 Middle/Jr. High                         13,199,179.00    1,067,637.06    7,056,215.54    5,975,227.73      167,735.73    1.27 %
 113 High School                             19,392,336.00    1,494,468.67   10,253,439.95    8,163,568.59      975,327.46    5.02 %
 119 Summer School/Basic Pgm                    342,226.00          306.47-     181,548.74             .00      160,677.26   46.95 %
 122 Special Education                       10,358,845.00      805,535.44    5,456,374.13    3,963,626.28      938,844.59    9.06 %
 125 Compensatory Education                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 127 Career & Tech Education                  2,754,418.00      156,759.22    1,562,796.31      954,743.44      236,878.25    8.59 %
 211 Truancy/Absenteeism Serv                   261,432.00       26,719.14      173,460.52       26,362.02       61,609.46   23.56 %
 212 Guidance Services                        1,371,125.00       23,538.05      164,631.04       18,697.30    1,187,796.66   86.62 %
 213 Health Services                            164,766.00       46,380.86      224,883.69      239,594.41      299,712.10- 181.90-%
 214 Psychological Services                     924,915.00       58,801.25      402,753.10      326,689.73      195,472.17   21.13 %
 215 Speech/Audiology Services                1,706,088.00       58,641.02      763,883.62      564,781.08      377,423.30   22.12 %
 216 Social Work Services                     1,812,606.00      113,046.51      728,563.13      670,441.41      413,601.46   22.81 %
 218 Teacher Consultant                         552,712.00       37,021.05      254,478.82      226,807.18       71,426.00   12.92 %
 219 Other Pupil Support Serv                 1,227,383.00      185,297.50      553,118.46       61,111.95      613,152.59   49.95 %
 221 Improv of Instruction                      875,159.00      105,041.78      681,904.89      614,761.50      421,507.39-  48.16-%
 222 Educational Media Service                  780,189.00       68,287.40      440,822.31      121,097.22      218,269.47   27.97 %
 226 Superv/Direc Inst Staff                  1,357,052.00      100,819.25      878,415.28      459,930.24       18,706.48    1.37 %
 229 Other Instr Staff Srvices                  119,116.00        8,989.70       78,237.95       39,455.41        1,422.64    1.19 %
 231 Board of Education                         253,600.00        2,500.00      137,327.41        2,611.64      113,660.95   44.81 %
 232 Executive Admin                            724,952.00       44,589.57      441,895.20      191,432.44       91,624.36   12.63 %
 241 Office of Principal                      8,618,921.00      679,196.69    5,082,541.57    2,478,519.56    1,057,859.87   12.27 %
 252 Fiscal Services                          1,461,568.00      102,149.10      902,408.70      395,423.57      163,735.73   11.20 %
 257 Internal Services                            3,000.00          311.87           23.84             .00        2,976.16   99.20 %
 259 Other Business Services                     45,900.00        2,341.80       17,974.15             .00       27,925.85   60.84 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                 12,761,015.00      962,779.77    8,078,343.91      808,012.86    3,874,658.23   30.36 %
 266 Security Services                           28,654.00       26,862.43-       1,138.43        1,799.27       25,716.30   89.74 %
 271 Pupil Trans Services                     6,266,862.00      552,607.14    3,992,232.44      755,218.05    1,519,411.51   24.24 %
 282 Communication Services                     119,340.00       10,903.22       81,995.40       39,461.27        2,116.67-   1.77-%
 283 Staff Services                           1,351,465.00      160,556.61      899,119.22      232,026.23      220,319.55   16.30 %
 284 Support Services Tech                    2,041,332.00      125,518.35    1,314,072.94      622,280.28      104,978.78    5.14 %
 285 Pupil Accounting                           436,053.00       14,646.66      425,910.55       43,412.34       33,269.89-   7.62-%
 299 Other Support Services                       9,000.00             .00             .00        8,779.00          221.00    2.45 %
 371 Non-Public Schl Pupils                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 492 Prior Period Adj/Non-Mat                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 624 TRANSFER OUT                                      .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

11 GENERAL FUND                    * TOTAL  120,392,753.00    9,277,451.89   66,013,515.40   40,490,582.37   13,888,655.23   11.53 %

12 ATHLETIC FUND

 226 Superv/Direc Inst Staff                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                      2,500.00          725.75          725.75             .00        1,774.25   70.97 %
 266 Security Services                                 .00        2,052.52       10,042.92             .00       10,042.92-    .00 %
 284 Support Services Tech                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 293 Athletic Activities                      4,751,169.00      510,167.70    3,582,048.08      751,397.91      417,723.01    8.79 %

12 ATHLETIC FUND                   * TOTAL    4,753,669.00      512,945.97    3,592,816.75      751,397.91      409,454.34    8.61 %



 3/06/24   9.11.34                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  02/28   FISCAL PERIOD 08   YEAR 2024       WORKING                   PAGE         2

WORKING           ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  3/06/24      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

14 STATE GRANT FUND

 111 Elementary Instruction                     390,975.00       36,588.75      255,889.06      156,292.15       21,206.21-   5.42-%
 112 Middle/Jr. High                                   .00             .00        6,329.87             .00        6,329.87-    .00 %
 113 High School                                       .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 118 Pre-school                                 917,918.00       81,193.70      451,619.76       20,801.16      445,497.08   48.53 %
 119 Summer School/Basic Pgm                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 122 Special Education                                 .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 125 Compensatory Education                   3,522,199.00      349,111.00    2,158,596.84    1,383,413.28       19,811.12-    .56-%
 127 Career & Tech Education                     83,100.00             .00       82,950.00             .00          150.00     .18 %
 131 Adult/Cont Ed Basic                        184,765.00       17,377.93      112,250.02       54,754.31       17,760.67    9.61 %
 132 Adult/Cont Ed Secondary                      9,067.00           72.94-       9,067.00             .00             .00     .00 %
 211 Truancy/Absenteeism Serv                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 212 Guidance Services                        1,840,795.00      152,624.43      993,430.99      952,443.27      105,079.26-   5.70-%
 213 Health Services                              8,431.00             .00             .01             .00        8,430.99   99.99 %
 216 Social Work Services                     1,074,138.00       45,479.94      286,369.99      284,047.11      503,720.90   46.89 %
 219 Other Pupil Support Serv                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 221 Improv of Instruction                      209,988.00       15,181.13       87,587.32       62,114.23       60,286.45   28.70 %
 222 Educational Media Service                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 225 Technology Assisted Inst                       470.00             .00          216.00             .00          254.00   54.04 %
 226 Superv/Direc Inst Staff                    268,038.00       26,411.63      208,849.24      114,670.15       55,481.39-  20.69-%
 227 Academic Stu Assessment                     12,309.00        1,208.64       12,308.64             .00             .36     .00 %
 229 Other Instr Staff Srvices                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 231 Board of Education                                .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 232 Executive Admin                                   .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 233 Grant Writer/Procurement                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 241 Office of Principal                        629,302.00       42,772.98      283,405.33      262,781.27       83,115.40   13.20 %
 252 Fiscal Services                             16,999.00        1,236.55       10,959.48        5,532.85          506.67    2.98 %
 257 Internal Services                              783.00          481.50          481.50             .00          301.50   38.50 %
 259 Other Business Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                    455,204.00       46,896.18       80,319.68       24,556.25      350,328.07   76.96 %
 266 Security Services                          304,902.00       55,619.43      201,382.36       54,915.61       48,604.03   15.94 %
 271 Pupil Trans Services                        25,333.00             .00        4,457.75             .00       20,875.25   82.40 %
 281 Plan, Research & Dev                         1,600.00          200.00          200.00             .00        1,400.00   87.50 %
 282 Communication Services                         450.00             .00             .00             .00          450.00  100.00 %
 283 Staff Services                               1,175.00             .00          550.00             .00          625.00   53.19 %
 284 Support Services Tech                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 285 Pupil Accounting                            55,320.00        6,057.67       46,594.15          733.72        7,992.13   14.44 %
 289 Other Central Services                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 291 Pupil Activities                               541.00          254.92-         536.04             .00            4.96     .91 %
 311 Community Serv Direction                    12,111.00          464.00          464.00             .00       11,647.00   96.16 %
 331 Community Activities                        17,272.00             .00        4,262.42             .00       13,009.58   75.32 %
 351 Cust & Care of Children                      8,667.00        1,265.80        4,837.00             .00        3,830.00   44.19 %
 371 Non-Public Schl Pupils                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 391 Other Community Services                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 411 Payments Oth K-12/In Stat                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 456 Bldg Improvments Services                   13,644.00          828.00        4,973.86             .00        8,670.14   63.54 %
 611 FUND MOD - GENERAL FUND                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

14 STATE GRANT FUND                * TOTAL   10,065,496.00      880,671.40    5,308,888.31    3,377,055.36    1,379,552.33   13.70 %

15 FEDERAL GRANTS



 3/06/24   9.11.34                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  02/28   FISCAL PERIOD 08   YEAR 2024       WORKING                   PAGE         3

WORKING           ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  3/06/24      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

 111 Elementary Instruction                     273,123.00       21,984.11      144,813.70      123,559.17        4,750.13    1.73 %
 112 Middle/Jr. High                            178,063.00       13,157.55       86,408.82       79,741.50       11,912.68    6.69 %
 113 High School                                 50,158.00        7,649.89-      50,158.01             .00             .01-    .00 %
 118 Pre-school                                  67,512.00             .00             .00             .00       67,512.00  100.00 %
 119 Summer School/Basic Pgm                    348,310.00             .00        3,427.31             .00      344,882.69   99.01 %
 122 Special Education                        2,546,504.00      212,772.94    1,204,637.81    1,019,981.81      321,884.38   12.64 %
 125 Compensatory Education                     937,386.00       47,100.63      331,888.08      222,104.32      383,393.60   40.90 %
 127 Career & Tech Education                     98,460.00       27,189.57       62,840.95           22.48       35,596.57   36.15 %
 131 Adult/Cont Ed Basic                         82,903.00        6,597.65       47,059.35       45,845.75       10,002.10-  12.06-%
 132 Adult/Cont Ed Secondary                    109,925.00        8,473.41       57,841.70       54,343.07        2,259.77-   2.05-%
 211 Truancy/Absenteeism Serv                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 212 Guidance Services                          671,185.00       82,600.67      614,662.49      493,249.73      436,727.22-  65.06-%
 214 Psychological Services                     192,321.00       13,910.93      119,166.64       80,034.04        6,879.68-   3.57-%
 215 Speech/Audiology Services                   69,182.00        8,585.57       57,640.98       52,479.59       40,938.57-  59.17-%
 216 Social Work Services                       106,047.00        7,836.68       52,691.05       48,924.70        4,431.25    4.17 %
 218 Teacher Consultant                         581,993.00       43,875.82      278,836.49      277,648.87       25,507.64    4.38 %
 219 Other Pupil Support Serv                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 221 Improv of Instruction                      614,389.00       34,624.75      230,039.64      211,342.46      173,006.90   28.15 %
 222 Educational Media Service                    3,324.00             .00             .00             .00        3,324.00  100.00 %
 225 Technology Assisted Inst                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 226 Superv/Direc Inst Staff                    139,470.00       12,150.31       80,409.63       74,905.19       15,844.82-  11.36-%
 227 Academic Stu Assessment                      3,500.00        3,500.00        3,500.00             .00             .00     .00 %
 229 Other Instr Staff Srvices                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 231 Board of Education                           2,000.00             .00             .00             .00        2,000.00  100.00 %
 232 Executive Admin                                   .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 241 Office of Principal                               .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 252 Fiscal Services                             48,701.00        3,468.06       31,280.26       16,933.76          486.98     .99 %
 257 Internal Services                                 .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 259 Other Business Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                    146,166.00             .00      146,165.40             .00             .60     .00 %
 266 Security Services                            8,767.00          639.05        4,049.25             .45        4,717.30   53.80 %
 271 Pupil Trans Services                         9,146.00        2,500.00        4,344.00             .00        4,802.00   52.50 %
 281 Plan, Research & Dev                         3,801.00             .00             .00        3,874.00           73.00-   1.92-%
 282 Communication Services                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 283 Staff Services                                 260.00          260.00          260.00             .00             .00     .00 %
 284 Support Services Tech                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 285 Pupil Accounting                            74,064.00             .00             .05-            .00       74,064.05  100.00 %
 289 Other Central Services                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 299 Other Support Services                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 311 Community Serv Direction                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 331 Community Activities                        68,736.00        7,712.17       32,877.80       19,236.09       16,622.11   24.18 %
 351 Cust & Care of Children                           .00             .00            4.37-            .00            4.37     .00 %
 361 Welfare Activities                           4,070.00             .00        1,031.39             .00        3,038.61   74.65 %
 371 Non-Public Schl Pupils                      70,600.00             .00       12,420.47        1,094.08       57,085.45   80.85 %
 391 Other Community Services                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 411 Payments Oth K-12/In Stat                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 611 FUND MOD - GENERAL FUND                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

15 FEDERAL GRANTS                  * TOTAL    7,510,066.00      551,289.98    3,658,446.80    2,825,321.06    1,026,298.14   13.66 %

25 CAFETERIA



 3/06/24   9.11.34                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  02/28   FISCAL PERIOD 08   YEAR 2024       WORKING                   PAGE         4

WORKING           ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  3/06/24      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

 252 Fiscal Services                              3,200.00        6,175.84       35,948.10       27,594.91       60,343.01- 885.71-%
 259 Other Business Services                     55,000.00        1,616.34        9,656.72             .00       45,343.28   82.44 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                     56,405.00        2,396.50       33,258.06        2,611.03       20,535.91   36.40 %
 266 Security Services                                 .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 297 Food Services                            5,275,769.00      480,066.08    3,185,647.87      181,625.76    1,908,495.37   36.17 %
 411 Payments Oth K-12/In Stat                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 611 FUND MOD - GENERAL FUND                    200,000.00             .00             .00             .00      200,000.00  100.00 %

25 CAFETERIA                       * TOTAL    5,590,374.00      490,254.76    3,264,510.75      211,831.70    2,114,031.55   37.81 %

26 COMMUNITY EDUCATION FUND

 259 Other Business Services                     33,696.00        2,417.36       30,384.64             .00        3,311.36    9.82 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                        250.00          327.72        1,071.65             .00          821.65- 328.66-%
 283 Staff Services                                    .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 311 Community Serv Direction                   280,644.00       20,107.56      173,573.51        2,632.08      104,438.41   37.21 %
 351 Cust & Care of Children                    186,801.00       78,398.59      391,156.47       10,819.61      215,175.08- 115.18-%
 391 Other Community Services                   198,224.00             .00      164,392.76             .00       33,831.24   17.06 %

26 COMMUNITY EDUCATION FUND        * TOTAL      699,615.00      101,251.23      760,579.03       13,451.69       74,415.72-  10.63-%

27 PRESCHOOL FUND

 118 Pre-school                                 442,670.00       43,908.42      254,829.07        4,124.12      183,716.81   41.50 %
 241 Office of Principal                               .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                     90,900.00        4,866.15       39,468.33        8,385.77       43,045.90   47.35 %
 311 Community Serv Direction                     6,600.00          363.02        2,265.28             .00        4,334.72   65.67 %
 351 Cust & Care of Children                    534,756.00       27,184.65      315,761.80       74,355.01      144,639.19   27.04 %

27 PRESCHOOL FUND                  * TOTAL    1,074,926.00       76,322.24      612,324.48       86,864.90      375,736.62   34.95 %

29 STUDENT/SCHOOL ACTIVITY FUNDS

 296 Oth Stu/Schl Activity Exp                    2,424.00             .00        3,157.00             .00          733.00-  30.23-%

29 STUDENT/SCHOOL ACTIVITY FUNDS   * TOTAL        2,424.00             .00        3,157.00             .00          733.00-  30.23-%

31 2004 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 512 Payments Escrow Agent                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

31 2004 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

32 2005 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

32 2005 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %



 3/06/24   9.11.34                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  02/28   FISCAL PERIOD 08   YEAR 2024       WORKING                   PAGE         5

WORKING           ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  3/06/24      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

33 2006 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

33 2006 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

34 2015 SWAPTION (FORMERLY 2008 S

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 512 Payments Escrow Agent                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 634 Fund Modification                                 .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

34 2015 SWAPTION (FORMERLY 2008 S  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

35 2021 REFUNDER

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00    1,190,389.55             .00    1,190,389.55-    .00 %
 512 Payments Escrow Agent                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

35 2021 REFUNDER                   * TOTAL             .00             .00    1,190,389.55             .00    1,190,389.55-    .00 %

36 2017 REFUNDER SERIES A- DEBT R

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 512 Payments Escrow Agent                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

36 2017 REFUNDER SERIES A- DEBT R  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

37 2015 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00      558,948.04             .00      558,948.04-    .00 %

37 2015 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT  * TOTAL             .00             .00      558,948.04             .00      558,948.04-    .00 %

38 2012 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 512 Payments Escrow Agent                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 635 Fund Mod Fund 35                                  .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

38 2012 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

39 2023 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00          350.00      986,406.11             .00      986,406.11-    .00 %
 512 Payments Escrow Agent                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 634 Fund Modification                                 .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %



 3/06/24   9.11.34                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  02/28   FISCAL PERIOD 08   YEAR 2024       WORKING                   PAGE         6

WORKING           ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  3/06/24      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

 637 Fund Modification                                 .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

39 2023 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT  * TOTAL             .00          350.00      986,406.11             .00      986,406.11-    .00 %

41 CAPITAL PROJECTS CHESTERFIELD

 259 Other Business Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 299 Other Support Services                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 451 Site Acquisition Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 456 Bldg Improvments Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 459 Othr Facilities Acq & Con                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 644 OPERATING TRANSFER OUT                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

41 CAPITAL PROJECTS CHESTERFIELD   * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

42 23 MILE AND NORTH AVE SALE OF

 259 Other Business Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 299 Other Support Services                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 451 Site Acquisition Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 456 Bldg Improvments Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 459 Othr Facilities Acq & Con                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 644 OPERATING TRANSFER OUT                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

42 23 MILE AND NORTH AVE SALE OF   * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

43 CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

 451 Site Acquisition Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 456 Bldg Improvments Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 459 Othr Facilities Acq & Con                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 611 FUND MOD - GENERAL FUND                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

43 CAPITAL PROJECT FUND            * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

44 BLD & SITE 2002 SERIES 2

 299 Other Support Services                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 451 Site Acquisition Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 456 Bldg Improvments Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 459 Othr Facilities Acq & Con                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 644 OPERATING TRANSFER OUT                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

44 BLD & SITE 2002 SERIES 2        * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

45 BLD & SITE 2005 SERIES I

 299 Other Support Services                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %



 3/06/24   9.11.34                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  02/28   FISCAL PERIOD 08   YEAR 2024       WORKING                   PAGE         7

WORKING           ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  3/06/24      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

 451 Site Acquisition Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 456 Bldg Improvments Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 644 OPERATING TRANSFER OUT                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

45 BLD & SITE 2005 SERIES I        * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

46 BLD & SITE 2008

 299 Other Support Services                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 456 Bldg Improvments Services                  639,349.00        8,486.67      478,893.29       32,656.00      127,799.71   19.98 %
 644 OPERATING TRANSFER OUT                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 645 FUND MOD-2005 CAP PROJ                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

46 BLD & SITE 2008                 * TOTAL      639,349.00        8,486.67      478,893.29       32,656.00      127,799.71   19.98 %

47 B & S 2010 SERIES A TAXABLE

 456 Bldg Improvments Services                   92,540.00             .00       37,316.83       45,273.90        9,949.27   10.75 %

47 B & S 2010 SERIES A TAXABLE     * TOTAL       92,540.00             .00       37,316.83       45,273.90        9,949.27   10.75 %

48 B & S 2010 SERIES B BABS

 456 Bldg Improvments Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

48 B & S 2010 SERIES B BABS        * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

62 SCHOLARSHIP FUND

 298 Oth Priv Purpose Trust Ex                         .00             .00       18,340.07             .00       18,340.07-    .00 %

62 SCHOLARSHIP FUND                * TOTAL             .00             .00       18,340.07             .00       18,340.07-    .00 %

81 SPDI INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

 259 Other Business Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

81 SPDI INTERNAL SERVICE FUND      * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

82 Health Care Stabilization Inte

 259 Other Business Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

82 Health Care Stabilization Inte  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

83 Compensated Absence Internal S



 3/06/24   9.11.34                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  02/28   FISCAL PERIOD 08   YEAR 2024       WORKING                   PAGE         8

WORKING           ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  3/06/24      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

 259 Other Business Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

83 Compensated Absence Internal S  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

** GRAND TOTALS  150,821,212.00   11,899,024.14   86,484,532.41   47,834,434.89   16,502,244.70   10.94 %
 *BUDGET # 01 Working                                   WORKING



Erik J. Edoff 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Rochelle M. O’Malley 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

     
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 
WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Hilary Dubay    Sharon Ross         Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

Hilary E. Dubay   Amelia A. Servial    Sharon L. Ross         Terri M. Spencer Mary L. Hilton Adam D. Lipski Shane W. Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

 E.2. 
 

 
Initiator:  Rochelle M. O’Malley  
 
Board Meeting: March 18, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:  Quarterly Budget Update 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
 
Background: 
The purpose of the Comparative Statement is to compare the current to date revenues and 
expenditures to the year-to-date revenues and expenditures of the prior year.  Also displayed is 
the current year Board approved budget and the year-to-date projected budget. 

 
 
Current Status: 
The Quarterly Budget Update as of December 31, 2023 is attached. 

 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration recommends 

that the Board motion to approve the Quarterly Budget as presented. 

 

 
RMO/jbh 
 

 

http://www.lc-ps.org/






Erik J. Edoff 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Rochelle M. O’Malley 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

     
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Hilary Dubay    Sharon Ross         Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  

   

 E.3. 
Initiator:  Rochelle M. O’Malley  
  
Board Meeting: March 18, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:  Payment Registers 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
Background: 
The Payment Register for All Funds is presented to the Board of Education each month 
for review, per the Consent Agenda. All funds for each check run for the month are 
summarized and totaled by fund and check run.  The detail documents are included with 
the signatures of two Board members.  
 
 
Current Status: 
The Payment Register for All Funds are presented as of February 29, 2024, as follows: 
 

• February 14, 2024 

• February 28, 2024 

• Purchase Card Reports for January 2024 (reviewed) 
 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration recommends that 
the Board motion to approve the Payment Registers as presented. 
 
 

RMO/jbh 











































































































Erik J. Edoff 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Rochelle M. O’Malley 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

                                      
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Hilary Dubay    Sharon Ross         Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 E.4.    
Initiator:  Rochelle M. O’Malley 
 
Board Meeting: March 18, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:  Bid Award Recommendations  
 
 

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other:  ______________________ 

 
 

Background: 
The award of bids and Requests for Proposal require the approval of the Board of Education.   
 

 
Current Status: 
As of February 29, 2024, no recommendations meet the requirements.  
 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration is presenting 

for informational purposes only. 

 
 
RMO/jbh 
 



Erik J. Edoff 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Rochelle M. O’Malley 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

                                       
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski Hilary Dubay    Sharon Ross         Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

 E.5. 

 
 
Initiator:  Rochelle M. O’Malley 
 

Board Meeting: March 18, 2024 
 

Agenda Item:  Purchases 
 
 

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 

Background: 
During the normal course of business, district personnel will purchase items needed to 
administer the business operations of the schools or administrative offices.  In order to 
provide a review process of the purchases, the board has established a policy that all 
purchases in excess of $10,000 from the building and site fund and general fund 
purchases in excess of the state’s competitive bid threshold (currently at $29,572.00) be 
reported to the board on a monthly basis. 
 

Current Status: 
As of February 29, 2024, there are no purchases that meet the Board requirements. 
 

Fund Vendor Description Amount 

    
 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration is presenting 

for informational purposes only.  
 
 
RMO/jbh 



Erik J. Edoff 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Rochelle M. O’Malley 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

                                       
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Hilary Dubay    Sharon Ross         Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

 

         E.6.   

     
Initiator:  Rochelle M. O’Malley 
 
Board Meeting: March 18, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:  Overtime Report 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
 
Background: 
This report provides the Board with a monthly overtime variance report, by hours, for fiscal year 
2023-2024, which displays the current month’s actual paid overtime hours for the current year 
in comparison with the same month’s actual paid overtime hours for the previous year.  
Additionally, this report displays the current year’s overtime hours on a year-to-date basis and 
the total overtime hours incurred for the previous 2023 fiscal year.   

 
 
Current Status: 
The report for February 29, 2024 has been reviewed by the respective administrator of each 
building/department.  
 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration recommends 
that the Board motion to approve the Overtime Report as presented. 

 
RMO/jbh 
 



February February Difference FY2024 FY2023

2023-24 2022-23 Over (Under)

Year-to- 

Date Total OT

Operations & Maintenance:     

Custodians 488.76 575.79 (87.03)        3,449.95              5,246.02 

Food & Nutrition 8.66 1.13 7.53 142.53 117.30

Grounds 75.27 81.92 (6.65) 291.57 533.75

Maintenance 45.84 19.20 26.64 236.63 378.87

Warehouse 0.22 0.00 0.22 4.81 22.41

Transportation - Bus Drivers 512.10 313.10 199.00        2,392.73              2,301.02 

Transportation - Mechanics 66.70 40.00 26.70 109.00 219.55

Transportation - Dispatch/Secretary 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.50 126.25

Business Office:

Payroll 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11.08

Technology

Clerical 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.00

Buildings:

Curriculum/Athletics/Swim Mgmt 4.05 0.00 4.05 18.75 13.04

Elementary Secretary 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 23.87

Secondary Secretary 0.00 2.40 (2.40) 2.50 53.08

Elementary Administrative Aide 0.00 1.02 (1.02) 0.00 25.89

Programs & Other:

Aides Instructional & Band 23.46 68.80 0.00 44.81 184.03

Aides Noninstructional - Noon Aide 55.35 43.83 2.00 329.90 418.35

Aides Noninstructional - Supervisory 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 34.16

Aides Special Ed 0.00 0.00 0.00 21.93 55.47

Child Care-Secretary/Teacher 0.00 4.05 (4.05) 1.50 131.10

SDC/SACC 16.31 56.96 (40.65) 367.57 731.96

     Total        1,296.72        1,208.20                 124.34        7,417.68            10,640.20 

 

L’ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS

OVERTIME HOUR REPORT

for Fiscal Year 2023/2024



Erik J. Edoff 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Rochelle M. O’Malley 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

                                       
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Hilary Dubay    Sharon Ross         Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

 E.7. 
 
 
 
Initiator:  Rochelle M. O’Malley 
 
Board Meeting: March 18, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:  Summary of Investments 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
 
Background: 
Part of fiscal management is to invest available cash funds in order to earn income for 
the district.  As investing does include risk, both interest rate risk and credit risk, the 
board has established a policy that a report on investments be provided on a monthly 
basis. 
 
 
Current Status: 
The report reflected in the document is for the time period as of February 29, 2024 and 
includes the investing institution, type of investment, amount invested, interest rate as 
well as which fund made the investment. 
 
 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration recommends 
that the Board motion to approve the Summary of Investments as presented. 
  
RMO/jbh 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Summary of investments as of: February 29, 2024  

 

   

Institution Type  Amount Rate Date 

Purchased 

Due Date Fund Number 

of Days 

 

JPMorgan Chase 

 

Checking 

 

$10,674,206.73 

 

N/A 

 

Varies 

 

Immediate 

 

GF 

 

- 

        

JPMorgan Chase Checking $661,642.55 N/A Varies Immediate  IF - 

        

JPMorgan Chase 

 

Checking $21,230,653.40 N/A Varies Immediate DF - 

Fifth Third Bank Depository $3,830,807.50 N/A Varies Immediate  GF - 

        

Fifth Third Bank Depository $1,589,497.58 N/A Varies Immediate  IF - 

        

Fifth Third Bank Depository $1,585,592.49 N/A Varies Immediate  CF - 

        

Fifth Third Bank 

 

Checking 

 

$421,297.52 N/A N/A Immediate 2010 B&S 

 

- 

 

Bank of America Checking $155,171.96 N/A N/A Immediate  2008 - 

      B&S - 

 

MILAF Investment $17,767.45 N/A N/A Immediate 2008 B&S 

 

- 

 

MILAF 

 

MILAF 

 

 

Investment 

 

Investment 

   

$5,175,549.07 

 

$3,105,790.82 

 

N/A 

 

N/A 

 

N/A 

 

N/A 

 

Varies 

 

Varies 

 

GF 

 

IF 

 

- 

 

- 

MILAF Investment $170,976.15 N/A N/A Varies Scholarship 

Fund 

- 

        

NOTE:        

State Aid Payment –  

February 20, 2024 

Deposited to JPMorgan 

Chase                                      

 $11,017,406.83  N/A    

 

B&S = Building & Site 

CF = Cafeteria Fund 

DF = Debt Fund 

GF = General Fund 

 IF = Internal Fund 

  

 

  

 

 Rates as of February 29, 2024: 
Federal Reserve  

     Non-Asset Backed     30 days       5.32 

          60 days       N/A 

     Asset Backed         30 days       5.34 

          60 days       5.32 

 

Note: n.a. indicates trade data insufficient to 

support calculation of the particular rate. 



Erik J. Edoff 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Rochelle M. O’Malley 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

                                       
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Hilary Dubay    Sharon Ross         Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

 E.8.   
 

 
Initiator:  Rochelle M. O’Malley 
  
Board Meeting: March 18, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:  Summary of Wire Transfers 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
Background: 
In order to conduct financial management transactions, wiring money to and from the 
district’s bank accounts is part of the business office operations.  To provide oversight of 
this process a monthly report is prepared by the accountant.  The report includes the 
date of transaction, the bank accounts involved in the transactions, the reason for the 
wire transfer, the amount and the fund requesting the transfer. 
 
 
Current Status: 
The report submitted is as of February 29, 2024, and summarizes the wire transfers for 
the General, Debt, Cafeteria and Trust & Agency funds. 
 
 
 
Future Direction (Comments or Motion)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration recommends 
that the Board motion to approve the Summary of Wire Transfers as presented.  
 
RMO/jbh 

 



 

L’ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

Summary of General, Debt, Cafeteria and Trust & Agency Funds Wire Activity  

February 1 through February 29, 2024 

 

  1 of 1  

1 2/02/24 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

BMO Purchasing Card Activity through Jan 27th ($132,410.52) Wire GF 

2 2/08/24 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

Bank of America 2/09/24 PR Direct Deposit ($1,528,540.88) Wire GF 

3 2/08/24 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

MSGCU 2/09/24 Net Payroll Deductions (320,471.11) Wire GF 

4 2/09/24 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

Wells Fargo Bank 2/09/24 Annuities Funding ($141,865.06) Wire GF 

5 2/14/24 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

UMB Bank Trustee Fee (350.00) Wire DF 

6 2/22/24 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

Bank of America 2/23/24 PR Direct Deposit ($1,592,531.01) Wire GF 

7 2/22/24 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

MSGCU 2/23/24 Net Payroll Deductions ($311,071.40) Wire GF 

8 2/23/24 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

Wells Fargo Bank 2/23/24 Annuities Funding ($143,115.01) Wire GF 

 



Erik J. Edoff 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Rochelle M. O’Malley 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE 

                                      
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

E.9. 
CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski Hilary Dubay    Sharon. Ross         Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

        

             

      

 
Initiator:  Rochelle M. O’Malley 
 
Board Meeting: March 18, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:  Accounts Payable Check Register 
 

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
Background: 
The accounts payable check listing is reviewed by members of the board of education. They may 
review the paperwork, if necessary, and each will sign the check register. 

 
 
Current Status: 
The following Board Members are assigned to approve the Accounts Payable Check Register on 
the following dates: 
 

Review Dates Approvers 

Apr. 4 & 5, 2024 J. Da Via & A. Lipski 

Apr. 18 & 19, 2024 S. Ross & S. Sellers 

May 3 & 6, 2024 J. Da Via & A. Servial 

May 16 & 17, 2024 A. Doss & H. Dubay 
 

 
*The Purchase Card Report for February 2024 will be included with the March 13, 2024 check run. 
 

 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This status is provided as a schedule reminder.   

 
RMO/jbh 



Erik J. Edoff 
SUPERINTENDENT  

 
HUMAN RESOURCES 

 

Dr. Greg Dixon 
ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT 

FOR HUMAN RESOURCES 
 

Anita Dzieszkowski 
COORDINATOR FOR 

HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
 

24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 
CLINTON TOWNSHIP, MI  48036-1304 

586.783.6300  
586.783.6311 FAX 

WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam D. Lipski Hilary E. Dubay Sharon L. Ross Amelia A. Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane W. Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT SECRETARY TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE TRUSTEE 
 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 
in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 
Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Township, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 
Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER 
AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Initiator:  Greg Dixon 
  
Board Meeting:  March 18, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:  Employment Recommendations 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other_______________________ 

 
 
Background:   
The attached list contains candidates who have been recommended for employment in the position/building that 
is indicated, as well as current employees who are being recommended for a change in some aspect of their 
employment status.  
 
Current Status:   
The Human Resources department has received, from the appropriate administrator, a recommendation for the 
action listed along with any required documentation. Interviews and reference checks, if applicable, have been 
completed.  The Employment Recommendations are being submitted for approval by the Board. 
. 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion:   
Administration recommends that the Board motion to approve the Employment Recommendations as presented. 
 
 
GD/af 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E.10. 

http://www.lc-ps.org/


Employment Recommendations

 March 18, 2024

Page 1

# * Name Assignment Remarks Effective Degree/Step

INSTRUCTIONAL

1 Barrett, Charlene Teacher, South River Elementary School Retirement (32 years) 6/14/2024

2 Bury, Kimberly Teacher, L'Anse Creuse High School Retirement (32 years) 6/14/2024

3 Clark, Eileen Counselor, L'Anse Creuse High School - 

North

Retirement (24 years) 6/13/2024

4 D'Agostini, Sarah Teacher, Joseph M. Carkenord Elementary 

School

Leave of Absence (Second 

Request)

2024-2025 

school year

5 Dries, William Teacher, L'Anse Creuse High School Retirement (23 years) 6/14/2024

6 Duryee, Christine Elementary Summer Explorers 

Coordinator, Green Elementary School

Seasonal Position 3/1/2024 $53.20

7 Fedler, Sharyl Teacher, Atwood Elementary School Retirement (29 years) 6/14/2024

8 * Hein, Janis Speech Pathologist, Harry L. Wheeler 

Community Center & Administrative 

Offices

Replaces Sydney Sponkowski 2/27/2024 MA Step 16 ($90,438)

9 Judd, Suzanne Counselor, L'Anse Creuse High School Retirement (22 years) 6/13/2024

10 Kunarski, Tina Speech Pathologist, Harry L. Wheeler 

Community Center & Administrative 

Offices

Resignation 3/22/2024

11 Matte, Eric Teacher, L'Anse Creuse High School Retirement (25 years) 6/14/2024

12 Michell, Brian Boys Varsity Head Track Coach, L'Anse 

Creuse High School - North

Replaces Sharon Hicks 3/18/2024 Per Supplemental 

Contract

13 Opalewski, Scott Teacher, L'Anse Creuse High School Retirement (30 years) 6/14/2024

14 Oresky, Cynthia Off to a Great Start Teacher, L'Anse Creuse 

Middle School - Central

Seasonal Position 8/5/2024 $40.00

15 Purrett, Misty Teacher, L'Anse Creuse High School Retirement (25 years) 6/14/2024

16 Remelius, Crystal Teacher, Frederick V. Pankow Center Retirement (11 years) 6/13/2024

17 Rondeau-Repka, Patricia Speech Pathologist, Harry L. Wheeler 

Community Center & Administrative 

Offices

Retirement (29 years, 5 

months)

1/31/2024

18 Schnarrs, Brenda Teacher, Donald J. Yacks Elementary 

School

Retirement (25 years) 6/14/2024



Employment Recommendations

 March 18, 2024

Page 2

19 Schuck, Kristin Elementary Summer Explorers Assistant 

Coordinator, Green Elementary School

Seasonal Position 3/1/2024 $43.50

20 Wrubel, Teresa K-8 Literacy Coach, Harry L. Wheeler 

Community Center & Administrative 

Offices

Retirement (33 years, 7 

months)

6/30/2024

1 Carbon, Christina Spring Break Camp Counselor, Green 

Elementary School

Seasonal Position 3/25/2024 $12.36 

2 Cook, Stacey School Bus Driver, Larry F. Brender 

Support Services Center

Retirement (37 years) 6/30/2024

3 Fisette, Nicholas Spring Break Camp Director, Green 

Elementary School

Seasonal Position 3/25/2024 $21.10 

4 * Hassan, Heather Class I Office Clerk, DiAnne M. Pellerin 

Center

Replaces Jesse Fairman 3/18/2024 $15.45 

5 * Hendershot, Kevin Head Custodian, Atwood Elementary 

School

Replaces Anita Woodside 2/28/2024 $18.02

6 * Hundey, Jason Boys Junior Varsity Track Coach, L'Anse 

Creuse High School - North

Replaces Kellie Kahl 3/18/2024 Per Supplemental 

Contract

7 Krula, Melyssa Spring Break Camp Counselor, Green 

Elementary School

Seasonal Position 3/25/2024 $12.36

8 * Magnes, Nicole SACC Aide, Green Elementary School New Position 3/7/2024 $11.48

9 Menozzi-Kreft, Denise Food & Nutrition Floater, Larry F. Brender 

Support Services

Resignation 2/8/2024

10 Quantz, Julie Spring Break Camp Counselor, Green 

Elementary School

Seasonal Position 3/25/2024 $13.38

11 Rentfrow, Julie Spring Break Camp Counselor, Green 

Elementary School

Seasonal Position 3/25/2024 $12.36

12 * Seays, Brandon Girls Varsity Track Head Coach, L'Anse 

Creuse High School - North

Replaces Emily Jobes 3/18/2024 Per Supplemental 

Contract

13 * Tanner, Colleen Class I Cook/Cashier, L'Anse Creuse Middle 

School - East

Replaces Beverly Wingert 3/4/2024 $13.03

14 Thiry-Wilford, Denise School Bus Driver, Larry F. Brender 

Support Services Center

Retirement (35 years, 2 

months)

6/30/2024

Non-Instructional



Employment Recommendations

 March 18, 2024

Page 3

15 Webb, Julianna Spring Break Camp Counselor, Green 

Elementary School

Seasonal Position 3/25/2024 $13.91

16 * Weir, Johnathan SACC Aide, Green Elementary School Replaces Daniel Toledo 3/1/2024 $11.48

17 Williams, Anita Medical Aide, L'Anse Creuse High School - 

North

Resignation 3/6/2024

18 Williams, Barbara School Bus Driver, Larry F. Brender 

Support Services Center

Retirement (13 years, 8 

months)

6/15/2024

*New Employee to the District

Updated items are in bold and italicized.

Years of service reflect LCPS service, only, and does not reflect purchased service or service in other school districts.



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
Hilary Dubay Adam Lipski Sharon Ross Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT SECRETARY  TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or 
marital status in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, 
L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Township, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries 
related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

Erik J. Edoff 
SUPERINTENDENT 

 
Lisa E. Montpas 

ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT 
FOR CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION 

 
Kimberly Rawski 

DIRECTOR FOR 
SECONDARY EDUCATION 

 
Laura Dixon 
DIRECTOR FOR 

ELEMENTARY EDUCATION 
 
 

24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 
CLINTON TWP., MI  48036-1304 

586.783.6300 
586.783.6312 FAX 

WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

 

 

DEPARTMENT OF CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION 
 
 

 
 
Initiator:  Lisa Montpas   
 
Board Meeting: March 18, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:  Student Travel Requests 
 
 

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other_______________________ 

 
 
Background: 
According to Board Policy Article VIII, Section 19 Field Trips and Other District Sponsored Trips “Board 
approval is required for field trips and other District-sponsored trips which are planned to take students 
out of the United States or overnight.” 
 
Current Status: 
The following student travel requests have been received for approval.  These student travel trips are 
educational trips, aligned to curriculum, chaperoned and organized by School Personnel: 
 

1. Student travel is requested for 6 L’Anse Creuse High School North students to travel to Jostens 
Renaissance Global Conference in Orlando, Florida on July 15, 2024 and return on July 18, 2024. The 
students will be attending a National Conference on leadership, both for leadership class and 
culture/climate committees. The trip is requested by Meredith Beard. There will be 10 staff including 
M.Beard to chaperone the trip. 

2. Student travel is requested for 50 LCHS World Language Club students to travel to Cedar Point in 
Sandusky, Ohio on June 8, 2024. The students will enjoy Cedar Point while getting to know other students 
who are taking world language classes at LCHS.  The trip is requested by Mike Bilen. There will be 6 staff; 
M. Bilen, C. Julien, J. Henderson, J. Allen, S. Hlavaty, and A. Tharp to chaperone the trip.  

3. Student travel is requested for 80 L’Anse Creuse High School North and L’Anse Creuse High School Choir 
students to travel to Cedar Point in Sandusky, Ohio on June 1, 2024.  The trip to Cedar Point is a combined 
trip with both LCHS and LCN choir programs to bond and grow together to connect our larger Lancer 
community.  The trip is requested by Mitch Osadchuk and John Clark.  There will be 3 staff; M. Osadchuk, 
J. Clark, and C. Beach and 9 parents to chaperone the trip. 

 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments): 
Administration is recommending approval for the above student travel requests at the February 26, 2024 board 
meeting. 

E.11. 

http://www.lc-ps.org/


L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 
 

 
 
 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING MINUTES 

FEBRUARY 21, 2024 – 6:30 P.M. 
 
The Board of Education of the L’Anse Creuse Public Schools district convened a Committee of the Whole on 
Wednesday, February 21, 2024 at 6:30 p.m. at the Harry L. Wheeler Community Center an Administrative 
Offices, located at 24076 F.V. Pankow Boulevard, Clinton Township, Michigan. 
 
Mr. Al Doss was appointed as Secretary pro tem in absence of Mrs. Ross. 
 
A. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance, Roll Call 
 

Mrs. Servial, Treasurer called the Committee of the Whole to order at 6:37 p.m. 
 
Roll Call 

 
Present  Mrs. Amy Servial, Treasurer 

Mr. John Da Via, Trustee 
Mr. Al Doss, Trustee 
Mr. Shane Sellers, Trustee 

 
 Absent:  Mr. Adam Lipski, President 

Mrs. Hilary Dubay, Vice President 
Mrs. Sharon Ross, Secretary 

 
Also present: Mr. Erik Edoff, Superintendent 
  Ms. Lisa Montpas, Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum & Instruction  

Dr. Greg Dixon, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources 
Ms. Laura Holbert, Director for Elementary Education 

  Mr. Donald Gratton, Director for Operations 
Mr. Brandon Streng, Director for Technology 
Mrs. Nicolette Trask, Executive Assistant to the Superintendent 
Employees and Patrons of the District 

 
B. Hearing of School District Patrons 
 

Ms. Carolyn Flosky, parent in the district, addressed the Board regarding the L’Anse Creuse High 
School tennis courts.  
 

C. Presentations 
 

Students from L’Anse Creuse High School, L’Anse Creuse High School – North and Pankow Center 
presented information on the 2024 Charity Week Events.  L’Anse Creuse High School – North 
students also shared information about their upcoming Student Council States presentation taking 
place this weekend.  The stated their presentation won at the regionals event in January and they will 
be competing at states. 
 

D. Department Updates 
 
The Curriculum, Business, Human Resources, Support Services, and Technology Departments 
provided an informational update for the Board on the progress of work and projects occurring within 
their department. Discussion followed. 

E.12.a. 



L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 
 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING MINUTES FOR FEBRUARY 21, 2024     PAGE 2 
 

E. Superintendent’s Report 
 
D.1. Mr. Edoff provided a district update and shared that the Technology Department will be implementing 

a 4-step identification process for the use of district technology in the near future.  He stated that this 
has become necessary for security purposes and also a requirement of the district’s cyber insurance 
company. Mr. Edoff provided a legislative update shared that nothing is currently happening in Lansing 
and no meetings are occurring at this time and the impact this has on budget approval.  He shared that 
there is a little movement on the Special Education budget.   Mr. Edoff shared that he is working to 
finalize his Goals and will present them to the Board for approval at the next meeting. 

 
F. Curriculum and Instruction Office 
 
F.1.  Ms. Montpas provided Student Travel Requests that will be presented to the Board for approval at the 

next Regular Board Meeting. Discussion followed. 
 
F.2. Ms. Montpas provided information on the consortium agreements and program participation that will 

be presented at the next regular board meeting for approval for the 2024-2025 School Year.  
Discussion followed. 

 
G. Business & Operations Office 
 
G.1. Mr. Edoff provided information on the Consent Agenda Items that will be presented for approval at the 

next Regular Board Meeting.   
 
G.2. Mr. Edoff provided information on the Recommendation to appoint the district auditor that will be 

presented for approval at the next Regular Board Meeting.  Discussion followed. 
 
G.3.  Mr. Edoff provided information on the 2024 Summer Tax Collection that will be presented for approval 

at the next Regular Board Meeting.   
 
H. Human Resources Office 
 
H.1.  Dr. Dixon provided information regarding the Employment Recommendations that will be presented 

for approval at the next Regular Board Meeting. Discussion followed. 
 
I. Support Services Office 
 
I.1. Mr. Gratton provided information regarding the replacement of Tennis Courts at L’Anse Creuse High 

School.  Discussion followed. 
 
J. Mr. Streng provided information regarding an Elementary Staff Device Recommendation that will be 

presented for approval at the next Regular Board Meeting.  Discussion followed. 
 
Mrs. Servial called a break from 7:55 p.m. to 7:58 p.m. 
 
K. Other Matters 
 
K.1  The Board Committee assignments were provided for the 2024 calendar year. 
 
K.2. Mr. Edoff provided information for a First Reading of Policy Recommendations that will be 

presented for approval at the next Regular Board Meeting.  Discussion followed. 
 
 



L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 
 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING MINUTES FOR FEBRUARY 21, 2024     PAGE 3 
 
 
L. Hearing of District Patrons Follow-up 

 
No patrons addressed the Board at this time.   
 

M. Board Member Comment 
 
None. 

 
N. Adjournment 

 
Motion by Mr. Doss, supported by Mr. Da Via, to adjourn the meeting.  The meeting was adjourned at 
8:11 p.m.   

 
Yes:  All 
No: None 
Motion carried. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
 
Al Doss, Secretary pro tem 
Board of Education 



 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
FEBRUARY 26, 2024 – 6:30 P.M. 

The Board of Education of the L’Anse Creuse Public Schools district convened a Regular Board Meeting on 
Monday, February 26, 2024 at 6:30 p.m. at the Harry L. Wheeler Community Center an Administrative Offices, 
located at 24076 F.V. Pankow Boulevard, Clinton Township, Michigan. 

 
A. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance, Roll Call 

 
Mr. Adam Lipski, President, called the Regular Board Meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 
Roll Call 

 
Present: Mr. Adam Lipski, Vice President 

Mrs. Hilary Dubay, President 
 Mrs. Sharon Ross, Secretary 
 Mrs. Amelia Servial, Treasurer 

Mr. John Da Via, Trustee 
Mr. Shane Sellers, Trustee (arrived at 6:54 p.m.) 

 
Absent:  Mr. Al Doss, Trustee 

 
Also present: Mr. Erik Edoff, Superintendent 

Ms. Lisa Montpas, Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum & Instruction 
Dr. Greg Dixon, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources 
Ms. Rochelle O’Malley, Assistant Superintendent for Business & Operations 
Ms. Laura Holbert, Director for Elementary Education 
Mr. Donald Gratton, Director for Operations 
Mr. Brandon Streng, Director for Technology  
Ms. Nancy Supanich, Director for Special Education 
Mr. Drake Okie, Director for Athletics 
Mrs. Nicolette Trask, Executive Assistant to the Superintendent 
Employees and Patrons of the District 

 
B. Approval of Agenda 

 
Motion by Mrs. Dubay, supported by Mr. Da Via, to approve the February 26, 2024 Regular Board 
Meeting Agenda as presented.   
 
Yes: All 
No: None 
Motion carried. 

 
C. Presentations 
 
C.1. Mr. Edoff acknowledged Mrs. Dubay for her years of service as President over the last five years and 

thanked her for the dedication and leadership through her tenure.  Mr. Edoff also shared that Mrs. 
Dubay is the only board president with 5 consecutive years for over 60 years in the district.   
 
Mr. Lipski recognized Mrs. Dubay for her leadership through the unprecedented COVID-19 
challenges, advocating for students while making difficult decisions, and her efforts towards the 
district’s fund balance increasing from 4.5% to 19% during per presidency. 
 

E.12.b. 



L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 26, 2024  PAGE 2 

 
 

C.2. Mr. Edoff and Mr. Lipski acknowledged the L’Anse Creuse High School – North Girls Bowling Team 
for placing 1st in the for the second year in a row.  They presented the team with a Certificate of 
Achievement for their accomplishment. 

 
C.3. Mr. Edoff recognized the family of Louise Bommarito for their generous athletic scholarship donation 

to the district.  He thanked Mr. James Chauvin and the family who donated a $5,000 annual  athletic 
scholarship in the total amount of $175,000 on behalf of Mrs. Bommarito.  Mr. Edoff shared that this 
family has three generations of students who have graduated or are attending L’Anse Creuse, and two 
family members are currently working in the district.  He thanked them for their support with a 
Certificate of Excellence and a small gift on behalf of the district and students as a token of 
appreciation.  
 

Mr. Lipski called a break from 6:44-6:50 p.m. 
 
D. Hearing of School District Patrons 

 
Mr. Marc Bates, parent and Tennis Coach in the district, addressed the Board regarding the 
replacement of tennis courts. 
 
Mr. Dylan Wolfe, student in the district, addressed the Board regarding the replacement of tennis 
courts. 
 
Ms. Kristi Glavich, parent in the district, addressed the Board regarding the replacement of tennis 
courts. 
 
Ms. Christine Templin, parent in the district, addressed the Board regarding the replacement of the 
tennis courts. 
 
Mr. David Dugger, resident in the district, addressed the Board regarding proposed bond projects in the 
district and a recent communication to the district. 

 
E. Consent Agenda 

 
Motion by Mrs. Ross, supported by Mr. Sellers, to approve the following Consent Agenda items as 
presented: 

E.1. Budget Report 
E.2. Quarterly Budget Update 
E.3. Payment Registers 
E.4. Bid Award Recommendations 
E.5. Purchases 
E.6. Overtime Report 
E.7. Summary of Investments 
E.8. Summary of Wire Transfers 
E.9. Accounts Payable Check Register Schedule 
E.10. Employment Recommendations 
E.11. Student Travel Requests 
E.12.a. January 16, 2024 Organizational Meeting Minutes 
E.12.b. January 16, 2024 Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes 
E.12.c. January 29, 2024 Special Meeting Minutes 
 

Discussion followed. 
 



L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 26, 2024  PAGE 3 
 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Yes: Ross, Sellers, Servial, Da Via, Dubay, Lipski 
No: None 
Motion carried. 

 
F. Superintendent’s Report 
 
F.1  Mr. Edoff provide a district update and shared the district is planning for the tutoring program next year.  

He also shared that there is a small increase in foundation allow and a few interesting things in the 
budget regarding school safety and mental health.  Mr. Edoff shared that he is looking forward to 
Charity Week events and the transition of sports moving outside for Spring.  Discussion followed. 

 
F.2.  Mr. Edoff presented his goals for the 2024-2025 school year for the board’s approval.  Discussion 

followed. 
 
 Motion by Mrs. Servial, supported by Mr. Da Via, to approve the 2024-2025 Superintendent Goals as 

presented. 
 
 Roll Call Vote: 
 Yes: Servial, Da Via, Dubay, Ross, Lipski 
 No: Sellers 
 Motion carried. 
 
G. Curriculum and Instruction Office 

 
G.1. Mrs. Montpas presented the Consortium Agreements and program participations for 2024-2025 school 

year for the Board’s approval. 
 
Motion by Mrs. Dubay, supported by Mrs. Servial, to approve the following consortium agreements 
and program participation for the 2024-2025 school year as presented: 

• Career Technical Education (CTE) Consortiums 
• Early College of Macomb 
• International Academy of Macomb  
• Southwest Macomb Technical Education Cooperative (SMTEC) 

 
Discussion followed. 
 
Yes: All 
No: None 
Motion carried. 
 

H. Business Office 
 

H.1. Mrs. O’Malley presented the recommendation to appoint the district auditor. Discussion followed. 
 
Motion by Mr. Sellers, supported by Mrs. Ross, to appoint Yeo & Yeo, P.C. as the district auditor for 
services for the 2023-2024 and 2024-2025 fiscal years as presented.  
 
Yes: All 
No: None 
Motion carried. 

 



L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 26, 2024  PAGE 4 
 
 
H.2. Mrs. O’Malley presented the 2024 Summer Tax Collection Rates for the board’s approval.  Discussion 

followed. 
 

Motion by Mr. Sellers, supported by Mrs. Servial, to approve the 2024 Summer Tax Collection Rates 
as presented.  Discussion followed. 
 
Yes: All 
No: None 
Motion carried. 
 

I. Support Services Office 
 

I.1. Mr. Gratton presented information and funding options for the replacement of the L’Anse Creuse High 
School tennis courts for the Board’s consideration.  Discussion followed. 

 
 Motion by Mrs. Dubay, supported by Mrs. Ross, to approve the replacement of the L’Anse Creuse 

High School tennis courts in the amount of 1,400,000 with work done by Simone Construction 
Services.  Project funding will be paid out of bond dollars, or if the bond does not pass, financed over a 
7-year period with a 3.25% interest rate with payback of approximately $234,000.00 per year.  
Discussion followed. 

 
 Roll Call Vote: 
 Yes: Dubay, Ross, Da Via, Lipski, Servial 
 No: Sellers 
 Motion carried. 

 
J. Technology Department 
 
J.1. Mr. Streng presented the Elementary Staff Technology Device Recommendation for the Board’s 

consideration. 
 
Motion by Mrs. Servial, supported by Mrs. Ross, to approve the purchase of Apple iPad bundles through 
Apple in an amount not to exceed $135,000.00 as presented. 
 
Yes: All 
No: None 
Motion carried. 
 

K. Other Matters 
 

Mr. Edoff presented the First Reading of the following Policy Updates for the Board’s Consideration: 
 

• Article VII. Students - Section 12. Student Discrimination and Harassment 
• Article VIII. Curriculum and Instruction -  Section 18. Non-discrimination 
• Article X. Personnel 

- Section 12. Staffing, Assignment, Layoff and Recall of Tenured Teachers 
- Section 13. Staffing, Assignment, Placement, Layoff and Recall of All Non-Tenured 

Teaching Staff 
- Section 14. Performance Evaluations 
- Section 28. Discrimination and Equal Employment 
 

• Article XI. Facilities and Operations – Section 14. Generative Artificial Intelligence Use Policy 



L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 26, 2024  PAGE 5 
 

Discussion followed.  Ms. Dubay asked that “or designee” be added to Section 12 on page 46 for the 
second reading approval. 

 
Motion by Mr. Da Via, supported by Mrs. Servial to approve the First Reading of the Policy Updates as 
presented with the addition of “or designee” to Section 12 on page 46 of the policy manual. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Yes: Da Via, Servial, Lipski, Dubay, Sellers, Ross 
No: None 
Motion carried. 
 

L. Hearing of School District Patrons Follow Up 
 
 No patrons addressed the Board at this time. 
 
M. Board Member Comment 

 
Mrs. Ross addressed the Board and reminded everyone of the Macomb County School Board Dinner 
Meeting on February 27 and encouraged board member to attend these meetings in the future. 
 
Mr. Sellers recognized Mrs. Ross for her position in the Macomb County School Board Association and 
commended her for representing the district. 
 

N. Closed Session – Negotiations and Legal Opinion 
 
Motion by Mrs. Servial, supported by Mr. Da Via, to move into Closed Session pursuant to Section 8 (c,h) 
of the Open Meetings Act at 8:11 p.m. for negotiations and legal opinion. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Yes: Servial, Da Via, Ross, Sellers, Lipski, Dubay 
No: None 
Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Mr. Sellers, supported by Mrs. Dubay to reconvene to Regular Session at 9:14 p.m. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Yes: Sellers, Dubay, Ross, Servial, Da Via, Lipski    
No: None 
Motion Carried. 
 

O. Adjournment 
 
 Motion by Mrs. Ross, supported by Mrs. Servial, to adjourn the meeting at  9:14 p.m.   
 
 Yes: All 

No: None 
Motion carried. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Sharon L. Ross, Secretary 
Board of Education 
SLR:nt 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Hilary Dubay        Adam Lipski                            Sharon Ross                      Amelia Servial                       John Da Via                         Al Doss                                Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT           VICE PRESIDENT                    SECRETARY                          TREASURER               TRUSTEE                                     TRUSTEE                                   TRUSTEE 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status in its 
programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 
Administration, 24076 F.V. Pankow Boulevard, Clinton Township, MI 48036, (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 
783-6300. 

 

 
 

 
 

 
HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 
Erik J. Edoff 
SUPERINTENDENT  

 
24076 F.V. PANKOW BOULEVARD 

CLINTON TOWNSHIP, MI  48036 
586.783.6300 

586.783.6310 FAX 
WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Initiator:  Erik Edoff    
  
Board Meeting:  March 18, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:   LCHS Track Approval 
 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other_______________________ 

 
 
Background:   
During the February Committee of the Whole meeting, it was shared that the administration of L’Anse Creuse High School 
has requested the new track is replaced with a blue color material to match their school colors.  Historically, the district 
has supported the high schools personalizing their school signage, etc. to reflect their school colors.    
 
 
Current Status:  
The cost associated with the modification of the track color from standard black to blue to match LCHS colors is 
$50,000.00.  Administration has researched funding for the request and has identified a potential source to cover the 
additional cost.  The funding option is made possible by unexpected income from the MILAF district investments which 
are currently over $300,000.00. 
 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
Administration is providing additional information for the Board’s consideration in approving the L’Anse Creuse 
High School track to be upgraded with blue material to align with their school colors for $50,000.00. 

F.2. 



 

        Form updated 10/15/2020 to meet new requirements of SB 927 

 
 
 

L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 
Continuity of Learning Plan for the 2023-2024 School Year 

 
 

1. A. Reconfirm instructional delivery method. 

Reconfirm how instruction will be delivered for each grade level: 
• Check all that apply 
• Insert grade levels for your district 
• Information about schedules or grade level splits can be described in the additional 

comments section 

Pre-Kindergarten: 
☒In-person 
☐Hybrid (combination of in-person and virtual) 
☐Virtual-Live Synchronous (may include live streaming) 
☐Virtual-Asynchronous 
☐Educational hard-copy materials 
☐Other 

Additional Comments: 
 

• The Great Start Readiness Program (GSRP) students attend 4 days per week in person. 
Family engagement activities and PD occur on Fridays for the teachers. 

• Early Childhood Special Education (ECSE) students attend 5 days a week in person for a 
half day. 

 

Elementary:  (Grades 1-5) 
☒In-person 
☐Hybrid (combination of in-person and virtual) 
☐Virtual-Live Synchronous (may include live streaming) 
☐Virtual-Asynchronous 
☐Educational hard-copy materials 
☐Other  



        (Form updated 10/15/2020 to meet new requirements of SB 927) 

Additional Comments: 
 

• All students in grades TK-5 attend in person for all scheduled school days. 

Middle School: (Grades 6-8) 
☒In-person 
☐Hybrid (combination of in-person and virtual) 
☐Virtual-Live Synchronous (may include live streaming) 
☐Virtual-Asynchronous 
☐Educational hard-copy materials 
☐Other  

Additional Comments: 
 

• All students in grades 6-8 attend in person for all scheduled school days. 
 
 

High School: (Grades 9-12) 
☒In-person 
☐Hybrid (combination of in-person and virtual) 
☐Virtual-Live Synchronous (may include live streaming) 
☐Virtual-Asynchronous 
☐Educational hard-copy materials 
☐Other  

Additional Comments: 
 

• All students in grades 9-12 attend in person for all scheduled school days. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



        (Form updated 10/15/2020 to meet new requirements of SB 927) 

 
 
 
 
 

Continuity of Learning Plan for the 2023-2024 School Year 

DISTRICT NAME: L’Anse Creuse Public Schools   

Reconfirmed at Board of Education Meeting March 18, 2024 

 
 
Transparency Reporting 
 
Post to transparency link on the district website  

 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Erik J. Edoff 
SUPERINTENDENT  

 
HUMAN RESOURCES 

 

Dr. Greg Dixon 
ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT 

FOR HUMAN RESOURCES 
 

Anita Dzieszkowski 
COORDINATOR FOR 

HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
 

24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 
CLINTON TOWNSHIP, MI  48036-1304 

586.783.6300  
586.783.6311 FAX 

WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam D. Lipski Hilary E. Dubay Sharon L. Ross Amelia A. Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane W. Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT SECRETARY TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE TRUSTEE 
 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 
in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 
Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Township, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 
Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER 
AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Initiator:  Greg Dixon 
  
Board Meeting:  March 18, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:  Contract Extension 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other_______________________ 

 
 
Background:   
The 2021-2024 collective bargaining agreement between the district and TPOAM Food and Nutrition Services 
Employees is set to expire on March 31, 2024. Over a number of bargaining sessions, Administration and the 
Association have reached an agreement for a contract extension.  
 
Current Status:   
At their meeting on March 5, 2024, Administration and the Association agreed to extend the TPOAM Food and 
Nutrition contract through June 14, 2024. 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion:   
Administration recommends that the Board motion to approve the Contract Extension as presented. 
 
 
GD/af 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

H.1. 

http://www.lc-ps.org/


24400 F.V. PANKOW BOULEVARD, CLINTON TOWNSHIP, MI 48036-1305 586-783-6550 586-783-6556 FAX  WWW.LC-PS.ORG 
NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status in its programs, services, 
activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools Administration, 24076 F.V. Pankow Boulevard, 
Clinton Township, MI 48036, (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 

 

 
 

 
 

 
LARRY F. BRENDER SUPPORT SERVICES CENTER 

 
Erik J. Edoff 
SUPERINTENDENT  

 
TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT 

 
Brandon Streng 

DIRECTOR FOR TECHNOLOGY 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Initiator:  Brandon Streng    
  
Board Meeting:  March 18, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:   Technology Data Center UPS Recommendation 
 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other_______________________ 

 
 
 
Background: 

One of the two uninterruptable power supply (UPS) units for the district data center recently malfunctioned. 
These units provide redundant battery power to the servers and equipment in the data center in the event 
of a utility power loss until the gas generator takes over. The Technology Department received repair 
estimates from our maintenance vendor, RESA Power, that ranged from $11,000 to $40,000 depending on 
required replacement components along with advice to replace the unit due to its projected end of support 
being December 2024. 
  

Current Status:  
Due to the upcoming end of support for the current UPS unit and the high cost of repair compared to the cost of a 
new UPS unit, the Technology Department would like approval to purchase one 30kVA Liebert UPS system 
including installation and disposal of the malfunctioned unit. The UPS will be purchased using General Fund in the 
amount of $37,500 from the Technology Department budget. The pricing was provided by the REMC bid contract 
and is attached. The estimated lead time is 11 weeks. 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 

Administration recommends the Board motion to approve the purchase of one 30kVA Liebert UPS system 
through Inacomp TSG in the amount of $37,500 as presented. 

 

 
 

I.1. 



REMC VERTIV/LIEBERT QUOTE 
  Quotation :  18312 
 

 

  

  Date:  March 5th, 2024 
  Terms:   Net 30 Days & FOB Factory 
Project:  L’Anse Cruise Schools UPS Replacement  

 
 

WE ARE PLEASED TO QUOTE THE FOLLOWING EQUIPMENT 
 
 

QTY Description  Unit Price  

30 kVA Liebert EXM UPS 

1 30kVA Liebert EXM UPS with (1) Internal Battery System for 
50min of Runtime at Current Load  $27,601.85 

1 Electrical Installation and Rigging of New UPS + Removal and 
Disposal of Existing APC UPS $8,000.00 

Freight Estimate $1,898.15 

Total Price Including Equipment, Freight and Startup but NOT Tax $37,500.00 
 
 
 
30 kVA Liebert EXM UPS 
 
 
One (1) 30kVA Nameplate Liebert EXM UPS with the following features:  

• System Input Voltage of 208/120V, 3 Phase, 4 wire plus ground  
• System Output Voltage of 208/120V, 3 Phase, 4 wire plus ground  
• Fixed Capacity 30kVA UPS System  
• 208V Native Output Voltage  
• Single Input Configuration  
• One (1) IntelliSlot Unity Dual Protocol Card; P/N: IS-UNITY-DP; Monitoring and 

configuration of Vertiv products and environmental sensors through stand-alone 
Web UI or integration with Trellis™, Liebert Nform, LIFE™ Services. Supports 
third-party management systems using SNMP, Modbus or BACnet.  

• SNMP Communication  
• BACnet Communication  
• Transformer-Free Architecture - Efficiency up to 95% in double conversion mode  
• Unity Power Factor Rating - Delivers more usable power per kVA  
• Load Power Factor Support - Supports loads 0.5 lagging to unity without derating  
• Energy Optimization Mode (Eco-Mode)  
• 65kAIC Rating - Provides interrupting rating and labeling of 65kA  

http://www.inacomp.net/


• Active Power Factor Corrected IGBT Input Converter  
• PWM transistorized (IGBT) inverter  
• Continuous Duty Static Bypass Switch  
• Input Contacts - Dry contacts are available for functions including monitoring 

external breakers, on-generator signal, and other functions  
• Output Contacts - Dry contacts are available for functions including a permissive 

signal to maintenance bypass SKRU, to trip external breakers, and other 
functions  

• Generator Load Control - Suppresses battery charging reducing power demand 
by an external signal. Shifts unit from Eco Mode to double conversion (if 
applicable), and synchronizes the inverter output with the bypass  

• Automatic retransfer - Provides return to inverter power after an overload  
• DSP based controls - Provides digital control of power conversion and system 

operation  
• Backlit LCD display - Monitors power conversion, UPS operation and utility 

conditions. Deviations are logged for troubleshooting  
• Temperature-Compensated Charging/Battery Load Test  
• Top-and-bottom-entry cable access 
• Front only service access  
• Local Emergency Power Off (EPO)  
• LIFE™ Services for the 1st year  
• IP 20 enclosure  
• Casters and leveling feet  
• UL and cUL Listed to UL Standard 1778 5th Edition  
• Liebert EXM Factory Services Certified Test Report  
• 6 min,1 x Internal String of ENERSYS HX150E-FR Batteries 

o 50min at current Load  
 

THANK YOU FOR THE OPPORTUNITY TO QUOTE 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Adam Lipski        Hilary Dubay                  Sharon Ross                      Amelia Servial                          John Da Via                          Al Doss                                Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT           VICE PRESIDENT                    SECRETARY                          TREASURER              TRUSTEE                                    TRUSTEE                                   TRUSTEE 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status in its 
programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 
Administration, 24076 F.V. Pankow Boulevard, Clinton Township, MI 48036, (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 
783-6300. 

 

 
 

 
 

 
HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 
Erik J. Edoff 
SUPERINTENDENT  

 
24076 F.V. PANKOW BOULEVARD 

CLINTON TOWNSHIP, MI  48036 
586.783.6300 

586.783.6310 FAX 
WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

 
 
 
Initiator:  Erik Edoff    
Board Meeting:  March 18, 2024 
Agenda Item:   Board Policy Second Reading Recommendation 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other_______________________ 

 
Background:   
Clark Hill has provided the district with required policy language revisions due to law amendments. The following are the 
reasons for the revisions: 
 

1. Public Act 6 of 2023 amended the Elliott-Larsen Civil Rights Act to prohibit  discrimination on the basis of 
sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.  Our model policies had initially made protection of 
these characteristics optional, but the amendment makes them mandatory.  Revisions are necessary to 
Article VIII, Section 18, Article VII, Section 12, and Article X, Section 28. 
 

2. Public Acts 113, 115, 116, 143 and 144 of 2023 amended the Public Employee Relations Act (PERA) to reinstate 
certain collective bargaining rights that had  previously been repealed, and to make other changes in labor 
relations laws.  Major changes are necessary to Article X, Section 12, and 13 with an additional minor change 
made to Article X, Section 14. 

Current Status:  
Revisions to our current board policy is required by law, therefore Administration is recommending a Second Reading of 
the following changes/additions to board policy:  
 
Board Policy: 

• Article VII. Students 
o Section 12. Student Discrimination and Harassment 

• Article VIII. Curriculum and Instruction 
o Section 18. Non-discrimination  

• Article X. Personnel 
o Section 12. Staffing, Assignment, Layoff and Recall of Tenured Teachers 
o Section 13. Staffing, Assignment, Placement, Layoff and Recall of All Non-Tenured Teaching Staff 
o Section 14. Performance Evaluations 
o Section 28. Discrimination and Equal Employment 

 
Administration has also worked with Clark Hill to draft new policy language addressing the use of Artificial 
Intelligence(AI). The new policy language is attached.  
 
The First Reading was approved during the February 26, 2024 Committee of the Whole meeting with the additional text 
of “or designee” added to section 12 on page 46.  The teacher’s union has also reviewed the mandatory policy changes.  
 
Additions are made in green font and old policy language is struck out. 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
Administration recommends the Board motion to approve the Board Policy revisions listed above for a Second 
Reading.    

 
J.1. 



 19 L’Anse Creuse Board of Education Policy and Bylaws 

E. In the event a student who has been permanently expelled from another school 
district requests admission to this District, the Board shall, in making its decision, 
rely upon the recommendation of the Superintendent. 

F. The Board may:  

1. set aside the expulsion and reinstate the student with or without any limiting 
conditions;  

2. reduce the expulsion to a suspension or expulsion of 180 days or less with 
any conditions the Board deems advisable under the circumstances;  

3. affirm the expulsion.  

G. The Board shall make its decision no later than the next regular Board meeting 
following the committee's submission of its recommendations. The Board's 
decision shall be final and not subject to appeal. 

Section 12. Student Discrimination and Harassment. (AG) 

The District is committed to maintaining a learning environment in which all individuals are 
treated with dignity and respect, free from discrimination and harassment.  The District 
shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, 
gender  identity or gender expression, age, religion, height, weight, marital or family status, 
disability, military status, genetic information, or any other legally protected category in its 
programs and activities, including employment.  Sexual harassment is a form of sex 
discrimination, and shall likewise not be permitted with respect to students or employees.  
The District shall not retaliate against a person who reports or opposes improper 
discrimination or retaliation.  The District shall fully comply with all applicable federal and 
state civil rights statutes.  Discrimination, retaliation and harassment are prohibited whether 
occurring at school, on District property, in a District vehicle, or at any District-related 
activity or event. 
 
The Board is committed to maintaining a learning environment in which all individuals are treated 
with dignity and respect, free from discrimination and harassment.  Discrimination or harassment 
on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender orientation, marital status, genetic 
information, disability, age, or any other basis prohibited by law is strictly prohibited. The District 
prohibits such harassment and discrimination whether occurring at school, on District property, in 
a District vehicle, or at any District-related activity or event. 

A student who believes he or she has been or is the victim of discrimination or harassment should 
immediately report the situation to a teacher, counselor, social worker, the building principal or 
assistant principal, or the Superintendent. A staff member who observes, has knowledge of, or 
learns that a student has been or is the victim of discrimination or harassment shall immediately 
report the situation to the building principal or assistant principal or the Superintendent. 
Complaints against the building principal should be filed with the Superintendent.  Complaints 
against the Superintendent should be filed with the Board President. 



 35 L’Anse Creuse Board of Education Policy and Bylaws 

Conduct, including its provisions banning illicit and performance enhancing drugs, nicotine and 
alcoholic beverages, as well as the penalties for violating the Code.  A list of performance-
enhancing substances will be made available on the District website and communicated to student 
athletes and parents at least annually. 

Section 15. Textbooks, Technology, and Other Essential Curricular Materials. (AG) 

The Superintendent will recommend to the Board, for its approval, textbooks, technology, and 
other essential curricular materials. The Superintendent may designate qualified administrators 
and teachers to assist in the selection of textbooks, technology, and essential curricular materials 
to be recommended to the Board. 

Section 16. Selection of Media Center Materials. (AG) 

District students shall be provided access to a wide variety of educational materials, in various 
media, to support learning.  Consistent with District purchasing protocols, the Superintendent may  
make or approve purchases for District media centers and may receive recommendations for such 
purchases from professional staff members, parents and students. 

Section 17. Parental Objections. (AG) 

The Superintendent shall develop administrative guidelines that provide an opportunity for the 
presentation and fair consideration of parental objections to the School District’s curriculum, the 
selection of textbooks and other instructional materials and media center materials.  

Section 18. Nondiscrimination. (AG) 

The District shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex (including sexual 
orientation or transgender identity), disability, age (except as authorized by law), religion, military 
status, ancestry, or any other statutorily protected category (collectively, "Protected Classes") in 
its educational programs or activities. 

The District shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, sexual 
orientation,  gender identity or gender expression, age, religion, height, weight, marital or 
family status, disability, military status, genetic information, or any other legally protected 
category in its programs and activities, including employment.  Sexual harassment is a form 
of sex discrimination, and shall likewise not be permitted with respect to students or 
employees.  The District shall not retaliate against a person who reports or opposes improper 
discrimination or retaliation.  The District shall fully comply with all applicable federal and 
state civil rights statutes, including, without limitation, Title IX of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964. 

The District also shall not discriminate on the basis of Protected Classes in its employment policies 
and practices, and does not tolerate harassment of any kind. 

Sexual harassment is a form of sex discrimination, and shall likewise not be permitted with respect 
to students or employees. 



 36 L’Anse Creuse Board of Education Policy and Bylaws 

In accordance with Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, no otherwise qualified individual with a disability shall, solely by 
reason of his/her disability, be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of educational 
opportunity, or subjected to illegal discrimination or retaliation. The District shall not discriminate 
in admission or access to, participation in or treatment of, students with disabilities in its programs 
and activities. Similarly, the District shall not discriminate against any job applicant or employee 
with a disability in any term or condition of employment or in the recruitment process. 

The Superintendent shall appoint a Compliance Officer or Officers to assure adherence to this 
policy, and shall develop a complaint procedure for the processing and early disposition of alleged 
violations of the policy. 

The Superintendent shall develop and implement administrative guidelines to enforce this policy.  

Section 19. Field Trips and Other District-Sponsored Trips. (AG) 

The District recognizes that field trips, when used for teaching and learning integral to the 
curriculum, are an educationally sound and important ingredient in the instructional program of 
the schools.  Properly planned and executed field trips should supplement and enrich classroom 
procedures by providing learning experiences in an environment outside the school.  A field trip 
is any planned journey by one or more students away from District premises under the supervision 
of a professional staff member and an integral part of a course of study.  Other District-sponsored 
trips are any planned, student-travel activity which are approved as part of the District's total 
educational program. 

Board approval is required for field trips and other District-sponsored trips which are planned to 
take students out of the United States or overnight, except that under normal conditions, when no 
applicable travel alert has been issued by the federal government.  Approval of the Superintendent 
is required for all other such trips. 

Students on all field trips and other District-sponsored trips remain subject to the District's policies 
and administrative guidelines, including the Student Code of Conduct. 

The Superintendent shall prepare administrative guidelines for the operation of both field and other 
District-sponsored trips. 

Section 20. Student Assessment. (AG) 

The District shall, in compliance with law and rules of the State Board of Education, assess student 
achievement and needs in designated subject areas in order to determine the progress of students 
and to assist them in attaining District goals. 

The Superintendent shall develop and present to the Board annually a program of testing and 
assessment that comports with state law and is consistent with the policies of the District, and shall 
develop administrative guidelines as necessary to implement this policy. 



 44 L’Anse Creuse Board of Education Policy and Bylaws 

performance that may be attributed to a medical/mental health condition; or where there is a need 
for a second medical/mental health opinion in the case of an FMLA or other leave of absence.   

The employee to be examined shall sign a release authorizing the medical or mental health 
professional to submit a copy of the medical report to the Superintendent.  A copy of the medical 
report will be maintained in a separate, confidential medical file of the employee as required by 
law.   

If the employee refuses to submit to the District-mandated medical/health professional 
examination, the employee may be subject to disciplinary action, to and including termination. 

Section 8. Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. (AG) 

The District shall comply with all of the requirements of the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act of 1996, as amended (HIPAA). The Superintendent shall develop and 
implement administrative guidelines to ensure the District’s continued compliance with the 
requirements of HIPAA. 

Section 9. Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act. 

The District shall comply with all of the requirements of the Consolidated Omnibus Budget 
Reconciliation Act (COBRA), as amended, and its corresponding rules and regulations. 

Section 10. Omnibus Transportation Employees. (AG) 

The District shall comply with the Omnibus Transportation Employee Testing Act of 1991, as 
amended.  The Superintendent shall develop and implement regulations to conduct alcohol and 
drug testing of all employees working in safety transportation positions as required by law. 

Section 11. Probationary Teachers. 

The terms and conditions of employment of a probationary teacher shall be in accordance with 
state law, rules and regulations.  A probationary teacher shall be employed by the District as an at-
will employee such that his or her employment may be terminated at any time for any reason or 
no reason at all, or non-renewed in accordance with state law.  A probationary teacher shall be 
evaluated in accordance with state law, rules and regulations. 

Section 12. Staffing, Assignment, Layoff and Recall of Tenured Teachers Classroom 
Teachers 

Staffing, assignment, layoff and recall of teachers working for the District who fall within the 
definition of a tenured teacher, as defined by the Michigan Teachers’ Tenure Act, MCL §380.71 
et seq., are governed by applicable state law.  All personnel decisions regarding staffing, 
assignment, layoff and recall of a tenured teacher shall be made based on the following factors, in 
order of priority: 

a. individual performance; 



 45 L’Anse Creuse Board of Education Policy and Bylaws 

b. significant, relevant accomplishments and contributions; and 

c. relevant specialized training. 

The Superintendent has the sole discretion to make personnel decisions.  Length of service or 
tenure status will not be a consideration in any personnel decisions unless the factors listed above 
are equal.  The decision of the Superintendent shall be final. 

A teacher who has received an end of the year performance review rating of ‘ineffective” shall not 
be given preference that would result in that teacher being retained over another teacher who 
received an end of the year performance rating that is higher than “ineffective.” 

Staffing, assignment, layoff and recall of teachers working for the District, as defined under 
Section 1249 of the Revised School Code, MCL 380.1249, shall be consistent with Section 
1248 of the Revised School Code, MCL 380.1248, the Teacher Tenure Act, and other 
applicable state law.  All personnel decisions regarding staffing, assignment, layoff and recall 
of such teachers, including filling a vacancy, placing a teacher in a classroom, or conducting 
a staffing or program reduction or any other personnel determination resulting in the 
elimination of a teaching position, shall be made based on the following factors: 

a. Effectiveness as measured under the performance evaluation system 
prescribed by Section 1249 of the Revised School Code, MCL 380.1249; 

b.  The teacher’s length of service in a grade level or subject area, and recency of 
such service; 

c.  The teacher’s disciplinary record; 

d. Significant, relevant accomplishments and contributions above normal 
expectations of the teacher’s peer group and/or a demonstrated record of 
exceptional performance;  

e. Relevant specialized training (beyond District or state requirements) and the 
demonstrated integration of that training into instruction in a meaningful 
way; 

f. The teacher’s attendance (excluding absences subject to the Family Medical 
Leave Act or as "reasonable accommodations" pursuant to the Americans 
with Disabilities Act); 

g.   The academic needs and interests of District students;  

h.  Considerations of maintaining consistency of instruction in, and/or not 
disrupting, a current class or program; and 

i. The best interests of the District’s educational program; for example, where 
the disadvantages, drawbacks and/or difficulties that would result from a 
teacher transferring from one class or program to another would outweigh the 



 46 L’Anse Creuse Board of Education Policy and Bylaws 

advantages or benefits to the overall educational program from such a transfer 
(e.g., where it would be difficult to fill the vacancy created by such transfer). 

Length of service or tenure status may be a consideration in any personnel decisions where 
the factors listed above are equal.  The Superintendent or designee may identify additional 
job-related tiebreakers related to effectiveness to be utilized before considering length of 
service or tenure status.  The Superintendent or designee shall make personnel decisions 
based upon the factors above. The decision of the Superintendent or designee shall be final, 
subject to applicable collective bargaining agreements.  

A teacher who has received an end of the year performance review rating of 
“Ineffective/Needs Support” shall not be given preference that would result in that teacher 
being retained over another teacher who received an end of the year performance rating that 
is higher than “Ineffective/Needs Support.”   

A teacher on an individualized improvement plan (IDP) related to performance issues shall 
be taken into consideration in evaluating a teacher’s effectiveness under the performance 
evaluation system prescribed by Section 1249 of the Revised School Code. 

"Vacancy" shall mean and include any unoccupied position to be filled by the Board, after 
all other positions have been filled by District assignments, voluntary and involuntary 
transfers, job sharing, and/or recalls, in the manner and to the extent determined by the 
District as appropriate, and which vacancy is posted in a manner by the District seeking 
applicants; a “vacancy” shall not include a position which is unfilled due to the leave of 
absence of a teacher for less than a full school year and the teacher is expected to return to 
the position following the leave of absence.  
  
The Board adopts the Administrative Guidelines and procedures therein in further support 
and implementation of this Policy, entitled “AG 5.14 Staffing, Assignment, Layoff and Recall 
of  Classroom Teachers.” 

 

Section 13. Staffing, Assignment, Placement, Layoff and Recall of All Non-Tenured 
Teaching  Staff All Administrative and Non-Classroom Instructional Staff. 

Subject to any applicable collective bargaining agreements, individual employment contracts, or 
applicable laws, rules or regulations, the Superintendent has the sole discretion regarding the 
staffing, assignment, placement, layoff and recall of all administrators and staff other than tenured 
teachers. 

Subject to any applicable collective bargaining agreements, individual employment 
contracts, or applicable laws, rules or regulations, the Superintendent has the sole discretion 
regarding the staffing, assignment, placement, layoff and recall of all administrators and 
staff other than teachers  as defined under Section 1249 of the Revised School Code, MCL 
380.1249.  

 



 47 L’Anse Creuse Board of Education Policy and Bylaws 

Section 14. Performance Evaluations. 

Teachers and administrators shall be evaluated in accordance with state law using one of the 
evaluation tools allowable by the Michigan Department of Education and approved by the Board.  
The goal of the evaluation system is to improve teacher and administrator work performance, and 
to locate those teachers and administrators who are “ineffective.”  Evaluations shall be used as a 
factor in staffing, placement and layoff and recall decisions as permitted under state law. 

Non-administrator and staff other than probationary and tenured teachers shall be evaluated in 
accordance with the evaluation process and procedures developed by the Human Resources 
Department, reviewed by the Superintendent and approved by the Board or where applicable, as 
negotiated in the collective bargaining agreements, or in an individual’s employment contract with 
the District. 

Teachers and administrators shall be evaluated in accordance with state law using one of the 
evaluation tools allowable by the Michigan Department of Education.  The goal of the 
evaluation system is to improve teacher and administrator work performance and promote 
and support professional growth.  Those teachers and administrators who are rated less than 
“effective” shall be addressed in the manner prescribed by law.  Evaluations shall be used as 
a factor in staffing, placement, layoff and recall decisions as required and/or permitted by 
state law.  Evaluators of teachers and administrators shall be provided training in 
accordance with state law.  

Non-administrators and staff other than probationary and tenured teachers shall be 
evaluated in accordance with the evaluation process and procedures developed by the 
Human Resources Department and approved by the Superintendent, or where applicable, 
as negotiated in the collective bargaining agreements, or in an individual’s employment 
contract with the District. 

Section 15. Performance Based Compensation. (AG) 

The Superintendent shall develop, for Board review and approval, a compensation system that 
includes a performance bonus as permitted or required by state law and as negotiated in the 
collective bargaining agreements, or in an individual’s employment contract with the District. 

Section 16. Discipline, Demotion and Discharge. (AG) 

District employees whose employment is regulated by the provisions of the Michigan Teachers’ 
Tenure Act, MCL §38.71, et seq., may be disciplined, demoted or discharged for any reason that 
is not arbitrary or capricious.   

All other District employees are considered at-will employees who may be disciplined or 
discharged based on the recommendation of Human Resources and the Superintendent. The Board 
has sole discretion over discharge.  To the extent that this Policy conflicts with an individual 
employment contract or collective bargaining agreement, the employment contract or collective 
bargaining agreement shall apply. 



 50 L’Anse Creuse Board of Education Policy and Bylaws 

Section 24. Confidentiality 

Federal and state laws, rules and regulations protect the confidentiality of student educational 
records, medical records, social security numbers and other student and family information.  Staff 
medical and personnel records and information, social security numbers, or financial and business 
records may also contain confidential information.  District employees have a legal duty to keep 
information confidential as required by applicable laws, rules and regulations. 

Section 25. Accidents and Injuries (AG) 

The Board requires that accidents be reported and evaluated. Any accidents that results in an injury 
to a student, staff or a visitor to the schools must be reported promptly. Injured persons shall be 
referred immediately to the appropriate personnel for such medical attention as may be needed.  

Section 26. Conflict of Interest 

All persons employed by the school district shall perform their official duties in a manner free 
from conflict of interest, and shall refrain from actions that create the appearance of a conflict of 
interest prohibited by law.  All persons employed by the school district shall familiarize themselves 
with and at all times comply with the requirements and prohibitions of state law relative to conflicts 
of interest.   

Section 27. Whistleblower 

Michigan law protects employees who report or are about to report a violation of federal, state or 
local laws or regulations to a public body.  These protections include protection from retaliation 
or discrimination in their terms of employment based upon the report or belief that a report will be 
made.  Michigan law also protects those reporting or about to report on an employee’s behalf.  
Likewise, it is illegal for an employer to discharge, threaten to discharge or discriminate against 
an employee regarding his/her terms or conditions of employment because a person takes part in 
a public hearing, inquiry or court action. 

The school district encourages any individual who has knowledge or suspicion of a violation of 
federal, state or local laws or regulations to report such knowledge or suspicion to the 
Superintendent or designee.  All reports will be taken seriously and reviewed. 

The school district forbids any employee, agent, contractor or volunteer from discriminating  or 
retaliating against a person who reports or is about to report a violation or suspected violation of 
federal, state or local law or regulation to a public body or who reports or is about to report on 
such things on behalf of another. 

Section 28. Discrimination and Equal Employment  

The Board of Education does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex 
(including sexual orientation and transgender identity), disability, age, religion, height, weight, 
marital or family status, military status, ancestry, genetic information or any other legally protected 
category, (collectively, “Protected Classes”), in its programs and activities, including employment 
opportunities.  



 51 L’Anse Creuse Board of Education Policy and Bylaws 

The District shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, sexual 
orientation,  gender identity or gender expression, age, religion, height, weight, marital or 
family status, disability, military status, genetic information, or any other legally protected 
category in its programs and activities, including employment.  Sexual harassment is a form 
of sex discrimination, and shall likewise not be permitted with respect to students or 
employees.  The District shall not retaliate against a person who reports or opposes improper 
discrimination or retaliation.  The District shall fully comply with all applicable federal and 
state civil rights statutes, including, without limitation, Title IX of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964.     
 

Section 29. Ethics  

The Board of Education expects all professional staff members to maintain high standards in their 
working relationships, and in the performance of their professional duties.  

Section 30.  Sex Education Policy 

The School District will comply with applicable state and federal laws, rules, and regulations 
concerning sex education and family planning drugs and devices in the School District, as required 
under MCL §388.1766. 
 
ARTICLE XI. FACILITIES AND OPERATIONS 

Section 1. Toxic Hazard and Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response 

The Superintendent shall appoint an administrator or staff person to serve as the Toxic Hazard 
Preparedness (THP) Officer.  The THP Officer shall be responsible for identifying potential 
sources of toxic hazards, obtaining Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDSs), ensuring that all 
incoming materials are properly labeled with the identity of the chemical, hazard warning and the 
source of the chemical, and maintaining a current file of the MSDSs for all hazardous materials 
present on the District’s property, among other duties as required by law.  The Board will rely on 
MSDSs from material suppliers to meet hazard determination requirements. 

In accordance with state and federal law, the District shall have an asbestos management plan for 
each school building; maintain and update the plan to ensure that it is current with ongoing 
operations and maintenance; engage in periodic surveillance, inspection, re-inspection, and 
response action activities; and comply with the EPA regulations governing the transportation and 
disposal of asbestos and asbestos-containing materials.  The Superintendent shall be responsible 
for creating and implementing the asbestos management plan.  At least once each school year, the 
District will notify the parents, teachers and other staff of the availability of the asbestos 
management plan.  The Superintendent shall be responsible to ensure proper compliance with 
federal and state laws and the appropriate training and instruction of staff and students. 



 55 L’Anse Creuse Board of Education Policy and Bylaws 

The District will adhere to the applicable and existing standards for website accessibility so as to 
render the online content accessible.  In the event that current standards, laws and/or regulations 
change, the District will conform its policies and procedures to meets these changes.  The District 
will perform periodic accessibility audits of its web site.   

The District’s website shall be compliant with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1974 and 
Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act so that students, prospective students, employees, 
contracted staff, parents, visitors, District’s guests and members of the public with disabilities are 
able to acquire the same information, engage in the same interactions and enjoy the same benefits 
and services within the same timeframe as their nondisabled peers with substantially equivalent 
ease of use, and are not excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or are otherwise 
subjected to discrimination in any of the District’s programs, services and activities that are 
delivered online, as required by Section 504 and Title II of the ADA. 

The District will designate a Website Accessibility Coordinator and a Section 504/ADA 
Compliance Officer as required by law.   

The Superintendent shall develop administrative regulations consistent with applicable law and 
sufficient to permit the District to comply with its legal obligations. 

Section 14. Acceptable Use Policy:  Technology and Internet Safety. (AG) 

The District’s technology resources may only be used for learning, teaching, and administrative 
purposes consistent with the District’s mission and goals.  The use of the District’s computer 
system and access to the use of the Internet is a privilege, not a right.   Users of the District’s 
computer system and the Internet while using District technology have no legitimate expectation 
of privacy.  The District reserves the right to monitor all technology resource activity. 

The Superintendent shall develop and implement administrative guidelines, regulations and user 
agreements that are consistent with the purposes of the District and its mission and that comply 
with applicable law, including the Children’s Internet Protection Act (CIPA).  The District shall 
use technological measures to block or filter access to portions of the Internet containing visual 
depictions of materials deemed obscene or pornographic, including child pornography, and other 
material that may be harmful to minors, and to comply with CIPA.  

The District will cooperate fully with local, state and federal authorities in any investigation 
concerning or related to any illegal activities or activities not in compliance with District policies, 
administrative guidelines, regulations, procedures and user agreements using District provided 
technology and Internet. 

Generative Artificial Intelligence Use Policy 

Generative artificial intelligence (GenAI) is a type of artificial intelligence that allows users 
to input prompts that generate text, images, sound, video and other media.  GenAI tools 
include Open AI’s ChatGPT, DALL-E2, Google’s Vertex AI, Microsoft Copilot and others.  
While there are appropriate uses of GenAI, it may also be misused or may interfere with 
learning.  This policy explains the appropriate student-uses of GenAI as well as the 
prohibited uses of GenAI for schoolwork.  As always, students are responsible for following 



 56 L’Anse Creuse Board of Education Policy and Bylaws 

classroom rules and teachers’ directions when completing graded assignments and other 
work.   
 
Acceptable uses of GenAI. 
 
A student may use GenAI: 
 

• When a teacher gives the student express permission to use GenAI tools to generate 
ideas, text, other materials, or media, and then only for that assignment. 

• When the student properly attributes credit to the source and does not directly or 
indirectly represent the GenAI-produced material as the student’s original thought. 

• When authorized as part of the student’s Individualized Education Program (IEP). 
• Other times as directed or permitted by the student’s teacher. 

 
Prohibited uses of GenAI. 
 
A student may not use GenAI: 
 

• When critical thinking or original work is required. 
• When taking a “closed book” test or quiz. 
• When claiming the GenAI content as the student’s own, or when using GenAI 

tools to cheat or commit other forms of academic dishonesty. 
• When using GenAI tools, including image or voice generator technology, to violate 

other District rules or policies. 
 
Suspected and Substantiated Violations.   
 
Academic honesty is very important and expected in all student learning activities in the 
District.   For these reasons, administration and staff may utilize plagiarism and AI detection 
software to review student work.  Any suspected violation of this policy will be reviewed.  
Violations of this policy will be treated as academic dishonesty, and will result in 
consequences under either the “cheating” or “plagiarism” sections of the Student Code of 
Conduct.   
 
Section 15. Email. (AG) 

The district email system must be used by employees for any official district email 
communications.  The district complies with all federal and state laws pertaining to electronic mail.  
Any electronic communication outside of official district email communication is prohibited. 

Section 16. Copyrighted Works. (AG) 

The District shall comply with the federal Copyright Act.  The Superintendent will develop and 
implement administrative guidelines and regulations to implement this policy.   



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Adam Lipski        Hilary Dubay   Sharon Ross       Amelia Servial        John Da Via                      Al Doss            Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT   VICE PRESIDENT    SECRETARY    TREASURER   TRUSTEE     TRUSTEE     TRUSTEE

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status in its 
programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 
Administration, 24076 F.V. Pankow Boulevard, Clinton Township, MI 48036, (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 
783-6300. 

 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

Erik J. Edoff 
SUPERINTENDENT  

24076 F.V. PANKOW BOULEVARD 
CLINTON TOWNSHIP, MI  48036 

586.783.6300 
586.783.6310 FAX 
WWW.LC-PS.ORG

Initiator: Erik Edoff 
Board Meeting: March 18, 2024 
Agenda Item:   Board Policy First Reading Recommendation 

 Board Action Required  CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other_______________________ 

Background:   
On December 7, 2023, the Board Policy Committee met to review policy for the following: 

• Look into a policy for branding and logo design and development
• Review Rules for Addressing the Board and compare current rules to ones provided through MASB webinar
• Review Student Recognition before the Board

Current Status:  
After review the three topics, the Board Policy Committee is recommending two additions to the Board Policy/
Operating Procedures manuals regarding district logos and student Recognitions at Board of Education Meetings. 

Board Policy: 

• Article XI. Facilities and Operations
o Section 19. Logo Design and Development

Board Operating Procedures: 

• 4.0 Meetings
o 4.2.6. Student Recognitions

Additions are made in green font. 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
The Board Policy Committee recommends the Board motion to approve the First Reading of the above policy and 
procedure changes as presented.    

J.2.



 53 L’Anse Creuse Board of Education Policy and Bylaws 

Section 15. Email. (AG) 

The district email system must be used by employees for any official district email 
communications.  The district complies with all federal and state laws pertaining to electronic mail.  
Any electronic communication outside of official district email communication is prohibited. 

Section 16. Copyrighted Works. (AG) 

The District shall comply with the federal Copyright Act.  The Superintendent will develop and 
implement administrative guidelines and regulations to implement this policy.   

Section 17. Privacy of Social Security Numbers. (AG) 

The District maintains social security numbers of its students, employees and others in the ordinary 
course of business.  The Superintendent, shall implement necessary administrative guidelines, 
rules and regulations to protect the confidentiality of the social security numbers and the privacy 
rights of the individuals as required by applicable laws, rules, and regulations. 

Section 18. Naming and Dedication of Facilities (AG) 

Final responsibility for the naming of school buildings, new facilities or dedication of existing 
facilities in honor of a prominent individual will rest with the Board of Education. The 
administration may advise on such a matter and may engage the services of advisory committees. 
The Superintendent will provide a recommendation. 

 
The Superintendent shall assume the responsibility for recommending to the Board appropriate 
dedication programs or activities.  The Superintendent shall work with the appropriate 
administrator, staff, students and parent(s)/guardian(s) in planning such program or activity, once 
it has been approved. 

 
A dedication plaque shall be placed in each building.  Upon each plaque shall be placed the names 
of Board members who were holding office on the official first day of occupancy in the facility, 
the name of the Superintendent, the architect/engineer/construction manager, and other appropriate 
persons will be inscribed on the plaque. 
 
Section 19. Logo Design and Development 

All names, marks, logos and other symbols may not be altered, reconfigured or added to in 
any manner. All publications, advertising, marketing, promotional, informational and 
reference materials, videos, websites, letterhead, envelopes and business cards must comply 
with the district’s identity standards with respect to approved marks, logos and other 
symbols. 
 
L’Anse Creuse Public School departments and organizations seeking to develop their own 
identifying logos or wordmarks must contact the Office of the Superintendent in advance, 
and request approval. The Office of the Superintendent reserves the right to remove, rescind 



 54 L’Anse Creuse Board of Education Policy and Bylaws 

or withdraw any digital and/or print document, publication or apparel that does not comply 
with district identity standards. 
 
L’Anse Creuse Public Schools reserves the right to oppose any use of its official wordmarks 
and insignias it deems unlawful or improper, even if such use is not expressly prohibited 
hereunder. 

 

  
Policy Adopted: February 4, 2019 

Revised: 11/16/2020 



 L’ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
BOARD OF EDUCATION OPERATING PROCEDURES 

 

LCPS BOE Procedure Manual                                                     Page 13 of 16  

January: After an election: 
   Installation of new Board members 
 
Organizational meeting: 

Election of officers 
Schedule Board meeting dates and workshops 
Committee Assignments   
Legal Firms Renewal 
Depositories Renewal 
MASB Voting Delegates  
 

  
February: Instructional Program Approval: 

 International Academy 
 North Star Alternative Middle School Consortium 
 CTE Consortiums 
 Early College of Macomb 
 Fraser Public Schools Agreement 
Winter Board Workshop (from previous year 
 

March:  
April:   
May: Spring Board Workshop (Budget)  
June: Truth-In-Budget Hearing 

Budget Approval 
Tax Levy 
 

July:  
August: SACC License Renewal  

Summer Board Workshop (Strategic Plan)  
 

September:  
October: Audit 

  
November: After election – New Board Member acceptance of election when certified 

Fall Board Workshop  
 

December: Summer Tax Collection 
Schools of Choice Approval 
Superintendent’s Annual Evaluation 
 

 
4.2.5 Meeting Time 
  Meeting times will be determined at the Organizational Meeting, but not to exceed three 

hours.  Changes can be made by a Board vote.  Rescheduling will follow the Open Meetings 



 L’ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
BOARD OF EDUCATION OPERATING PROCEDURES 

 

LCPS BOE Procedure Manual                                                     Page 14 of 16  

Act. 
 
4.2.6. Student Recognition 

The Board of Education values excellence and wishes to instill in student the desire to 
do their best in all things.  It shall be the policy of this Board, therefore, to recognize 
outstanding accomplishment in all areas.  Any board member or Superintendent may 
request a student be recognized.  The Board authorizes the Superintendent to develop 
an administered guideline for recognition of outstanding student achievement based 
on well-defined, consistent criteria and standards. 

 
4.3 Board Member Preparation for Meetings 

 A. Board members will come to Board meetings prepared to discuss and take action 
on all agenda items. Study the material in the Board packet sent to them prior to the 
meeting. 

  
B. Requests for additional information will be addressed through the Superintendent 

prior to each Board meeting.  To maximize the opportunity to receive responses for 
the Board meeting, Board members when possible, should provide questions to the 
Superintendent ASAP but must be submitted by noon on Friday for a response.  
Questions that require significant investigation and analysis may require additional 
time. 

 
4.4 Board Member Participation/Conduct During Meetings 

A. In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, any time four or more Board members 
are gathered together to discuss school business it is considered a meeting 
(quorum).  

 B.  In addition to the following procedures, at all times Board members shall adhere to 
the Board policy. 

 
 4.4.1 Board Member Protocol 

A. Board members will maintain professional and courteous behavior throughout the 
meeting modeling Board behaviors consistent with student and staff expectations. 

B. Board members will demonstrate respect to fellow Board members, administrators 
staff and public participants through the following behavior: 

 Listen and treat each other respectfully. 
 Be cordial when disagreeing. 
 Be honest when expressing either owns opinion or those of community 

members. 
 Say what needs to be said as briefly and clearly as possible. 
 Direct comments solely to the business under deliberation. 
 Only speak after acknowledgement from the Board President or designated 

chair. 
 Support hearing the voice of all Board members on each agenda item that is 

being discussed and refrain from dominating the conversation. 
 Refrain from condescending or critical comments to members of the staff, 

public, or Board. 


	3.18.24 COTW & Regular Agenda
	E.1. Budget Report
	E.2. Quarterly Budget
	E.3. Payment Registers
	E.4. Bid Award Recommendations
	E.5. Purchases
	E.6. Overtime Report
	E.7. Summary of Investments
	E.8. Summary of Wire Transfers
	E.9. Accounts Payable Check Register Approval Reminder
	E.10. Employment Recommendations
	E.11. Student Travel Requests
	E.12.a. February 21, 2024 COTW Minutes
	COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING MINUTES
	FEBRUARY 21, 2024 – 6:30 P.M.
	B. Hearing of School District Patrons
	C. Presentations
	D. Department Updates
	E. Superintendent’s Report
	F. Curriculum and Instruction Office
	G. Business & Operations Office
	H. Human Resources Office
	I. Support Services Office
	J. Mr. Streng provided information regarding an Elementary Staff Device Recommendation that will be presented for approval at the next Regular Board Meeting.  Discussion followed.
	K. Other Matters
	L. Hearing of District Patrons Follow-up
	M. Board Member Comment
	N. Adjournment

	E.12.b. February 26, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes
	BOARD OF EDUCATION
	REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES
	A. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance, Roll Call
	Roll Call
	B. Approval of Agenda
	C. Presentations
	D. Hearing of School District Patrons
	E. Consent Agenda
	Discussion followed.
	Roll Call Vote:
	F. Superintendent’s Report
	F.1  Mr. Edoff provide a district update and shared the district is planning for the tutoring program next year.  He also shared that there is a small increase in foundation allow and a few interesting things in the budget regarding school safety and ...
	F.2.  Mr. Edoff presented his goals for the 2024-2025 school year for the board’s approval.  Discussion followed.
	Motion by Mrs. Servial, supported by Mr. Da Via, to approve the 2024-2025 Superintendent Goals as presented.
	Roll Call Vote:
	Yes: Servial, Da Via, Dubay, Ross, Lipski
	No: Sellers
	Motion carried.
	G. Curriculum and Instruction Office
	Motion carried.
	H. Business Office
	H.1. Mrs. O’Malley presented the recommendation to appoint the district auditor. Discussion followed.
	Motion by Mr. Sellers, supported by Mrs. Ross, to appoint Yeo & Yeo, P.C. as the district auditor for services for the 2023-2024 and 2024-2025 fiscal years as presented.
	Yes: All
	No: None
	Motion carried.
	H.2. Mrs. O’Malley presented the 2024 Summer Tax Collection Rates for the board’s approval.  Discussion followed.
	Motion by Mr. Sellers, supported by Mrs. Servial, to approve the 2024 Summer Tax Collection Rates as presented.  Discussion followed.
	Yes: All
	No: None
	Motion carried.
	I. Support Services Office
	I.1. Mr. Gratton presented information and funding options for the replacement of the L’Anse Creuse High School tennis courts for the Board’s consideration.  Discussion followed.
	Motion by Mrs. Dubay, supported by Mrs. Ross, to approve the replacement of the L’Anse Creuse High School tennis courts in the amount of 1,400,000 with work done by Simone Construction Services.  Project funding will be paid out of bond dollars, or i...
	Roll Call Vote:
	Yes: Dubay, Ross, Da Via, Lipski, Servial
	No: Sellers
	Motion carried.

	F.2. LCHS Track Approval
	LCPS Continuity of Learning Plan March 2024
	Continuity of Learning Plan for the 2023-2024 School Year

	H.1. TPOAM Food Extension
	I.1. Technology Data Center UPS Recommendation
	J.1. Policy Second Reading
	J.1. Policy Second Reading.pdf
	olicy Recommendations.pdf
	Policy First Reading.pdf
	1 CURRENT BOE Policy and Bylaws Final Manual revised 2.21.24.pdf
	ARTICLE VII. STUDENTS
	Section 11. Reinstatement Following Permanent Expulsion. (AG)
	E. In the event a student who has been permanently expelled from another school district requests admission to this District, the Board shall, in making its decision, rely upon the recommendation of the Superintendent.
	F. The Board may:
	1. set aside the expulsion and reinstate the student with or without any limiting conditions;
	2. reduce the expulsion to a suspension or expulsion of 180 days or less with any conditions the Board deems advisable under the circumstances;
	3. affirm the expulsion.

	G. The Board shall make its decision no later than the next regular Board meeting following the committee's submission of its recommendations. The Board's decision shall be final and not subject to appeal.

	Section 12. Student Discrimination and Harassment. (AG)

	ARTICLE VIII. CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION
	Section 15. Textbooks, Technology, and Other Essential Curricular Materials. (AG)
	Section 16. Selection of Media Center Materials. (AG)
	Section 17. Parental Objections. (AG)
	Section 18. Nondiscrimination. (AG)
	Section 19. Field Trips and Other District-Sponsored Trips. (AG)
	Section 20. Student Assessment. (AG)

	ARTICLE X. PERSONNEL
	Section 8. Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. (AG)
	Section 9. Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act.
	Section 10. Omnibus Transportation Employees. (AG)
	Section 11. Probationary Teachers.
	Section 12. Staffing, Assignment, Layoff and Recall of Tenured Teachers Classroom Teachers
	a. individual performance;
	b. significant, relevant accomplishments and contributions; and
	c. relevant specialized training.

	Section 14. Performance Evaluations.
	Section 15. Performance Based Compensation. (AG)
	Section 16. Discipline, Demotion and Discharge. (AG)
	Section 24. Confidentiality
	Section 25. Accidents and Injuries (AG)
	Section 26. Conflict of Interest
	Section 27. Whistleblower
	Section 28. Discrimination and Equal Employment
	Section 29. Ethics
	Section 30.  Sex Education Policy

	ARTICLE XI. FACILITIES AND OPERATIONS
	Section 1. Toxic Hazard and Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response
	Section 14. Acceptable Use Policy:  Technology and Internet Safety. (AG)
	Generative Artificial Intelligence Use Policy
	Section 15. Email. (AG)
	Section 16. Copyrighted Works. (AG)






	J.2. Policy First Reading
	page 58.pdf
	ARTICLE XI. FACILITIES AND OPERATIONS
	Section 15. Email. (AG)
	Section 16. Copyrighted Works. (AG)
	Section 17. Privacy of Social Security Numbers. (AG)
	Section 18. Naming and Dedication of Facilities (AG)
	Section 19. Logo Design and Development






